Bessemer City
NORTH CAROLINA ® w(,ﬁ,w/fz/,; %][/é

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
City Council Chambers
Monday, June 09, 2025 at 7:00 PM

AGENDA

Call to Order, Prayer, Pledge of Allegiance

Adjustment and Approval of the Agenda — Items will only be added or removed with the approval of
the Mayor and City Council.

Request to Speak/Opportunity for Public Comment — This is an opportunity for members of the
public to express items of interest to the Mayor and City Council. This is not a time to respond or take
action. Any necessary action will be taken under advisement. Speakers are asked to use proper decorum
and to limit comments to no more than three minutes.

1. Public Comment Acknowledgment: City Manager, Josh Ross will provide clarity on items
mentioned during public comment, if needed.

Consent Agenda — The items of the Consent Agenda are adopted on a single motion and vote, unless the
Mayor and City Council wish to withdraw an item for separate vote and/or discussion.

2. Approval of Minutes: City Council will consider adopting the Meeting minutes of the May 12,
2025 Regular Session.

3. Approval of Minutes: City Council will consider adopting Meeting minutes of the May 27,
2025 Work Session.

Business Items

4. Ordinance - Proposed FY 2025-2026 Budget: City Council will consider adopting the
ordinance regarding the 2025-2026 budget. A public hearing regarding the proposed budget was
held on Monday, May 12, 2025.

5. Resolution Directing the Clerk to Investigate a Petition Received for Voluntary Annexation
N.C.G.S. 8160A-31 (Sunset Ridge): City Council will consider approving a resolution directing
the City Clerk to investigate the petition for voluntary annexation from Development Solutions
Group (DSG) for the Sunset Ridge homes project per NCGS 160A - 31.

6. Establish a Public Hearing - Petition for Voluntary Annexation (Sunset Ridge): City

Council will consider establishing a public hearing for Monday, July 14th, 2025 at 7:00 PM to
hear public comment regarding a voluntary annexation petition from Development Solutions
Group (Sunset Ridge) for property located at tax parcel #314878 and #151640 (36.08 acres).



|~

Lead and Copper - Engineering Contract (Find & Replace): City Council will consider
approving an engineering contract regarding technical services from Harvin Engineering PLLC
for 400 replacement services.

|o0

Lead and Copper - Engineering Contract (Service Replacement): City Council will consider
approving an engineering contract regarding technical services from Harvin Engineering PLLC
for 150 replacement services.

|©

Advisory Board Appointments: Mayor and City Council will review applications received by

citizens to serve on the following volunteer boards: Downtown Development Board, Planning &
Zoning Board, Parks & Recreation Advisory Board, and the ABC Board. Appointments may be

made at this time.

10. Offer to Sell Property- City Council will consider accepting an offer to purchase property at
110 W. Virginia Avenue Parcel ID#120803 for $200,000.00 and allow the City Manager to
consummate the sale.

11. ABC Board Chairman: City Council will consider appointing an ABC Board Chairman to
serve from July 1, 2025 until June 30, 2026.

12. Planning & Zoning Board Chairman and Vice Chairman: City Council will consider
appointing an Planning & Zoning Board Chairman and Vice Chair to serve from July 1, 2025
until June 30, 2026.

City Manager's Report

Council General Discussion — This is an opportunity for the Mayor and City Council to ask questions
for clarification, provide information to staff, request staff to report back, or place a matter on a future
agenda.

Adjourn



Bessemer City
NORTH CAROLINA s (% é,(,,/{,, %J,/‘

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
City Council Chambers
Monday, May 12, 2025 at 7:00 PM

MINUTES

Members Present

Mayor, Becky S. Smith, Council Members: Brenda Boyd, Bill Whitmire, Brent Guffey, Nellie Floyd,
Donnie Griffin and Allen Hook were all present. City Manager, Josh Ross and City Attorney Marshall
Walker were present. A quorum was present.

Call to Order, Prayer, Pledge of Allegiance
Mayor Smith called the meeting to order. Mt. Pleasant Baptist, Pastor Thurman Clark led the audience in

prayer. Mayor Smith led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.

Adjustment and Approval of the Agenda
By motion of Allen Hook and unanimous vote, the May agenda was approved with no revisions.

Special Presentation
Student Appreciation- Students from Bessemer City High Primary and Tryon Elementary School were
recognized by their principals and City Council as part of the Student Appreciation Program:

Mrs. Erin Morehead, Guidance Counsel of Bessemer City Primary and Mayor Smith, recognized the
following students of the month: Nova Roseboro, Kindergarten representative; Aria Sims, 1% grade
representative; Aaden Scipio, 2" grade representative.

Mrs. Ashley Lackey, Literacy Teacher of Tryon Elementary and Mayor Smith, recognized the following
students of the month: Malakih Kendrick and Anslee Stalnaker, Kindergarten representatives; Kileal Moore
and Abigail McCombs, 1%t grade representatives, Piper Davis and Elizabeth Jones, 2" grade representatives,
Victoria Santiago and Isaiah Patterson, 3" grade representatives; Allisen Cienfuegos and Adam Cheek, 4%
grade representatives; and Nuria Jumileth Reyes and Mason Daniels, 51" grade representatives.

Citizen Recognition: Mayor Smith and City Council recognized the late Otis Whitehurst’s family with a
key to the City and proclamation. Mr. Whitehurst was a dedicated citizen who was dedicated to the
betterment of Bessemer City. He also bought the building that houses the Crisis Ministry. Mayor Smith
also recognized Mr. Whitehurst’s daughter, Lauren as she is a purple heart recipient.

Request to Speak/Opportunity for Public Comment
Mayor Smith opened the floor for public comment. There was none.

Consent Agenda
The following items on the Consent Agenda were unanimously approved by motion of Donnie Griffin:



1. Approval of Minutes: City Council will consider adopting the Meeting minutes of the April 14,
2025 Regular Session.

2. Approval of Minutes: City Council will consider adopting Meeting minutes of the April 23,
2025 Special Session.

3. Approval of Minutes: City Council will consider adopting Meeting minutes of the April 29,
2025 Work Session.

Proclamation Commemorating National Police Week
Mayor, Becky S. Smith read the proclamation recognizing Sunday, May 11th - Saturday, May 17th, 2025
as National Police Week in Bessemer City.

By motion of Brenda Boyd and unanimous vote, the Proclamation was adopted. A copy of this proclamation
is available for citizen review at City Hall.

Proclamation Commemorating Juneteenth Week & Festival

Mayor, Becky S. Smith read the proclamation recognizing Juneteenth week in Bessemer City from Sunday,
June 8th until Saturday, June 14th, 2025. Additionally, the Festival will be held Friday, June 13" at 6:00
PM in Centennial Park.

By motion of Nellie Floyd and unanimous vote, the Proclamation was adopted. A copy of this proclamation
is available for citizen review at City Hall.

Public Hearing for 2025-2026 Proposed Budget

City Manager, Josh Ross addressed City Council regarding the proposed budget. The proposed budget
maintains the current property tax rate of $0.55 per $100 of valuation and includes no use of fund balance
to balance the budget. Utility rate increases are proposed: a 3.5% increase for water, a 5% increase for sewer
(due to increased TRU costs), and an increase in the non-residential stormwater MMR rate from $3.00 to
$4.50.

Mr. Ross noted that this is the third year that the proposed budget is balanced without fund balance. In the
past, the city has used utility revenues to support the general fund. However, we wish to reduce the amount
of funds used by administrative charges from utility funds.

This budget reflects a conservative and strategic approach, continuing investments in infrastructure, public
safety, and staff. Key investments include:

Air conditioning for Stinger Park

Improvements to Centennial Park and the city pool
Citywide sidewalk repairs

Partial funding for an Economic Development Director
Three full-time firefighter positions

A 2% cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) for all staff

Mr. Ross highlighted the following key financial considerations:

Additional debt service obligations (General and Water/Wastewater Funds)
Inflationary pressures and increased operational costs

Continued fund balance recovery

Revenue shortfalls due to decreased utility usage



o Strategic investments to support growth

Mr. Ross also reminded Council that the City remains on the Local Government Commission’s (LGC) Unit
Assistance List (UAL), which is used by LGC staff to prioritize resources, develop guidance, and enhance
fiscal monitoring. The City's ongoing efforts are focused on strengthening fund balances, correcting
structural imbalances, and eliminating reliance on one-time funding for recurring costs. The LGC has
emphasized the need for “prompt and proper implementation” of these corrective actions, which the
proposed budget supports.

Mr. Ross thanked Council for the opportunity to serve as City Manager and prepare the budget. Council
member, Bill Whitmire inquired about the budget process and how to give feedback. Mr. Ross informed
him that per the Council adopted budget schedule, a third budget session will be held at the May 27" Work
Session. Mr. Whitmire stated that he has been through the budget and has some questions, as he was just
appointed to Council last month.

Interlocal Agreement for Soil Erosion and Sediment Control

City Planner, Jamie Watkins addressed Council regarding an interlocal agreement with Gaston County. The
city currently has an interlocal agreement in place with the County regarding soil erosion and sedimentation.
However, this agreement is over 20 years old and needs to be updated. Said interlocal agreement always
the County to administer part of the soil erosion and sediment control measures on the city’s behalf.

By motion of Brent Guffey and unanimous vote, the interlocal agreement was approved.

Interlocal Agreement for Stormwater Ordinance

City Planner, Jamie Watkins addressed Council regarding an interlocal agreement with Gaston County. The
city currently has an interlocal agreement in place with the County regarding stormwater enforcement.
However, this agreement is over 20 years old and needs to be updated. Said interlocal agreement always
the County to administer part of the stormwater control measures on the city’s behalf.

By motion of Allen Hook and unanimous vote, the interlocal agreement was approved.

Resolution- Lead & Copper Replacement (Phase 11)

City Manager, Josh Ross informed Council that a second resolution is needed for the lead and copper study.
This is a federally mandated initiative, and the city has received grant funds to complete the study. However,
now city staff is asking for approval of a resolution to allow phase two of the project to commence.

By motion Brent Guffey and unanimous vote, the resolution for the lead and copper replacements was
approved.

Downtown Development Board Appointments

City Clerk, Hydeia Hayes advised Council that the downtown development board met and held interviews
on Monday, April 28" with 7 candidates. Council liaison, Nellie Floyd stated that she and current board
members recommend that all of the members be appointed to the downtown development board.

By motion of Donnie Griffin and unanimous vote the following board appointments were made to the
downtown development board:

Paul “Demond” Richardson (May 2025- June 2025)
Richard Taylor (May 2025- June 2026)



Sohil Shah (May 2025- June 2026)
Steven Daniels (May 2025- June 2027)
Jeanneth Vasquez (May 2025- June 2027)
Morgan Smith (May 2025- June 2027)
Tillisha Durham (May 2025- June 2027)

Offer to Sell Property

City Manager, Josh Ross informed the board that the upset bid process for property at 112 West Virginia
Avenue has concluded. Since December 2024, the city has been conducting an upset bid process from a
starting offer of $230,000.

By motion of Brent Guffey and unanimous vote, an offer to purchase property at 112 W. Virginia Avenue
Parcel ID#120802 for $405,000.00 was permitted. City Council also permitted the City Manager to
consummate the sale.

Budget Amendment: Lead and Copper Study Project
By motion of Allen Hook and unanimous vote, a budget amendment regarding the Lead and Copper
Study project in the amount of $78,000 was approved.

Budget Amendment: Water Purchase (FEMA)
By motion of Brent Guffey and unanimous vote, a budget amendment regarding the purchasing of water
during Hurricane Helene in the amount of $181,985.00 was approved.

Budget Amendment: Helene Clean Up Funds (FEMA)
By motion of Brent Guffey and unanimous vote, a budget amendment regarding clean up funding related
to Hurricane Helene in the amount of $128,465.00 was approved.

Acceptance of Resignation - Downtown Development Board
By motion of Brenda Boyd and unanimous vote, William “Bill” Whitmire’s resignation from the Downtown
Development Board -as he has been appointed to Council- was approved.

City Manager’s Report
Clty Manager, Josh Ross, addressed the Board with the following:
The Down Home Festival was a wonderful time and he commended staff on their teamwork
across all departments.
- There is a new fact check page on the city’s website, designed to answer frequently asked
questions throughout the community.
- The FY 2025-2026 budget information is available online for public inspection.

Council General Discussion

Mayor Smith opened the floor for Council general discussion. Council Member, Bill Whitmire, inquired
about the budget process questions. City Manager, Josh Ross informed him that another budget session for
Council will be held at the May 27" Work Session. Further discussion can be held then. All of Council
commended city staff for their dedication and effort during the 37" Annual Down Home festival.

Adjournment
Being no further business to come before the board, by motion of Brenda Boyd and unanimous vote, the
meeting was adjourned at 8:18 PM.



Becky S. Smith, Mayor Hydeia Y. Hayes, City Clerk



]
Bessemer City
NORTH CAROLINA mim (}5“}%% : p,,,/j
CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION

City Council Chambers
Tuesday, May 27, 2025 at 2:00 PM

MINUTES

Call to Order
Mayor Becky S. Smith called the meeting to order.

Members Present

Present for the meeting were Council Members Brenda Boyd, Nellie Floyd, Bill Whitmire, Brent Guffey,
Allen Hook, and Donnie Griffin. City Manager Josh Ross and department heads were also in attendance. A
quorum was established.

FY 2025-2026 Draft Budget Review

City Manager Josh Ross opened the session by distributing his recommended FY 2025-2026 budget and
invited Council discussion. He noted that the budget materials and previous work session presentations are
available online for public viewing.

Council Member Bill Whitmire opened the discussion by recognizing the diligent work of City Manager
Ross and Finance Director Diane Jenkins in preparing the past two fiscal budgets. He then proposed reducing
the property tax rate from 55 cents to 52 cents per $100 of valuation by cutting several non-operational
expenditures, including resurfacing S. 12th Street, three full-time firefighter positions, facial recognition
software, and various sidewalk projects. Mr. Whitmire noted that while a 3-cent reduction would have
limited financial impact, it would demonstrate responsiveness to constituents' concerns. He also raised
questions about what might trigger financial oversight or intervention from the Local Government
Commission (LGC).

In response, Finance Director Jenkins and City Manager Ross stated that while there are no clearly defined
criteria for LGC takeover, the current recommended budget—maintaining the tax rate at 55 cents—has
already been submitted to LGC staff. Should Council wish to revise the rate, that intent would need to be
communicated promptly. Jenkins and Ross further explained that the City has been transparent with the LGC
over the past two budget cycles, particularly in highlighting the rationale behind raising the tax rate to support
budget stability.

Ross clarified that many of the items identified by Mr. Whitmire are tied to restricted funds and cannot be
redirected into the general fund. For example, funds for S. 12th Street paving would remain within the Powell
Bill fund if unspent. Jenkins also reminded the Council that governmental budgeting differs significantly
from personal finance.

The discussion continued with Ross pointing out that sidewalk improvements had been identified as a
Council priority during the February 2025 Planning Retreat. Council Member Allen Hook, serving as the
City’s MPO representative, emphasized that matching funds for the sidewalk project on Highway 161 are
critical; without them, the State may delay the project.



Council Member Donnie Griffin also expressed concern over the current tax rate and proposed eliminating
additional non-operational expenses, including improvements to Centennial Park, sidewalk repairs, and
Phase 11 of the pool improvement project. Inquiries were made regarding the $25,000 used for Phase | of the
pool upgrades. Staff responded that this amount, authorized after reviewing revenue projections in early
2025, was allocated toward cosmetic enhancements, filter repairs, and general maintenance. Phase 11, if
funded, would commence in Spring 2026 and would focus on renovating the slide, concession area, and
restrooms—the first such significant updates since 2006.

Mayor Smith addressed the Council and reminded members of their oaths to serve the entirety of Bessemer
City’s population. She emphasized the careful planning and expertise that went into the recommended
budget, urging respect for the efforts of City Manager Ross and Finance Director Jenkins.

Ross further reminded Council that in 2024, a memo was sent to the LGC outlining a plan to increase
revenue. While staff initially recommended a 15-cent tax increase, the Council ultimately approved a 10-
cent increase, bringing the rate to 55 cents. Although last year’s budget included significant cuts, this year’s
budget reflects relief from expiring debt obligations. Ross cautioned that altering the tax rate now may
prompt LGC questions about the City’s long-term financial direction, especially as this budget marks the
third year of reviewable financial data and the second consecutive year without using fund balance for
operations.

Council Member Allen Hook voiced his support for maintaining the 55-cent rate, noting that while he may
be open to a reduction in the future, the City must currently prioritize funding for full-time firefighter
positions due to a decline in volunteerism. He also supported pool improvements, viewing the facility as a
valuable community asset requiring continued investment.

Council Member Nellie Floyd agreed with maintaining the current rate, citing the need for stability and the
importance of forward-looking investments in amenities that support youth and families. As a senior citizen,
she empathized with residents on fixed incomes but emphasized that Council must weigh long-term
community benefits.

Council Member Brent Guffey also supported keeping the 55-cent rate in place for another year and
suggested increasing the staff cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) from 2% to 3%. He proposed delaying the
hiring of a water plant employee to help offset this potential increase.

A brief discussion followed regarding the upcoming pay and classification study to be conducted by the
MAPS Group. Following that, Council Member Hook made a motion, seconded and approved unanimously,
to exclude the Mayor and Council from the 2% COLA designated for staff.

Council Member Brenda Boyd shared that although her ward faces significant economic challenges, she has
not received any complaints about the tax rate. She supported maintaining the current rate and echoed interest
in increasing staff pay.

Council Member Whitmire closed the budget discussion by thanking everyone for their input. He also
encouraged staff to better communicate the City's financial story and its placement on the LGC's Unit
Assistance List to help residents understand the City’s position.

Council Member Guffey requested that the City include information about the upcoming sewer rate increase
in the next utility billing mailer. Staff confirmed that the 5% increase is a direct result of cost increases from
Two Rivers Utilities, operated by the City of Gastonia.



Department Reports

JoD Franklin, Parks & Recreation Director

Mr. Franklin thanked all departments for their support in the successful execution of the 37th Annual Down-
Home Festival. He noted the pool opened over the weekend and that the City would host a baseball
tournament at Stinger Park from June 11-15. Efforts are ongoing to secure additional sponsorships for future
events.

Jamie Watkins, City Planner & Stormwater Administrator
Mrs. Watkins informed Council that a voluntary annexation request would be brought forward at the June
2025 regular meeting.

Diane Jenkins, Finance Director
Ms. Jenkins provided updates regarding the ongoing audit, packing at the Annex, and noted that FY 2024—
2025 budget amendments will be presented for approval at the June 2025 work session.

Jamie Ramsey, Operations and Special Projects Director

Mr. Ramsey reported a successful gas audit and noted that Dylan Farris in the gas department recently earned
his welding certification, which will allow the City to reduce external welding costs. He also reported on a
pending gas line relocation in the Vantine area and the receipt of two lead and copper study engineering
contracts that will be presented to Council in June.

Tom Ellis, Public Safety Director

Mr. Ellis praised the seamless collaboration among departments during the Down Home Festival. He
reported that the Police Department currently has four vacancies, with two cadets in training and two lateral
hires planned. Narcan-related emergency calls have increased by 20%, and there is a growing need for full-
time firefighters due to the decline in volunteer service. Neighboring cities are now responding with multiple
fire trucks due to staffing shortages.

Hydeia Hayes, City Clerk & Human Resources Director

Ms. Hayes shared that the ABC Board has conducted interviews and will present appointment
recommendations at the June meeting. She also reminded Council of the Juneteenth Festival taking place
Friday, June 13 at Centennial Park and thanked the Council for its continued support of public celebrations.

City Manager’s Report
City Manager Ross provided the following updates:

o Staff are coordinating with NCDOT regarding road closures for upcoming painting projects at the
11th and 13th Street underpasses. Staff would like to see these underpasses used for "expression
tunnels."

e The branding committee has met again to incorporate Council feedback. The consultant will
present revised materials at the July 2025 work session.

o Public Safety Capital Project is underway. The initial site assessment and environmental testing
were completed. Additional revenue for this project will be generated from the sale of City Hall
Annex, Central Drug, and the Old Rex Theatre.

Council General Discussion

Mayor Smith opened the floor for discussion. Council Members, Allen Hook and Brent Guffey spoke about
a FEMA program dedicated to helping private homeowners remove debris from Hurricane Helene. City
Manager Ross informed them that staff have received this information and will be sharing with the
community.




By general consensus, the Work Session on Tuesday, June 24, 2025 will be held at 2 PM to allow for several
presentations regarding upcoming projects and grant funding.

Closed Session
By motion of Brent Guffey and unanimous vote, Mayor and Council went in to Closed Session as
permitted under N.C.G.S. 143-318.11 section (a) (5) to discuss the purchase of property at 3:47 PM.

By motion of Brenda Boyd and unanimous vote, Mayor and Council came out of Closed Session at 3:57
PM. No action was taken.

Purchase of Property
By motion of Brent Guffey and unanimous vote, City Manager Ross was instructed to negotiate on behalf
of Council for a piece of property located at 115 West Washington Avenue for $135,000.

Adjournment
There being no further business, by motion of Brenda Boyd and unanimous vote the meeting was

adjourned at 4:11 PM.

Becky S. Smith, Mayor Hydeia Y. Hayes, City Clerk



25-26 Recommended Budget Ordinance

2025-2026 Budget Ordinance

25-26 Budget Ordinance

BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Bessemer City, North Carolina:

Section 1. Itis estimated that the following revenues will be available to the General Fund for.the

Fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2025, and ending June 30, 2026:

Ad Valorem Taxes

Ad Valorem Taxes State Board Assessed
Prior Year Taxes

Motor Vehicle License

Gross Rental Vehicle Tax

Penalties & Interest

North Carolina Local Sales Tax

Solid Waste Disposal Tax

Beer & Wine Tax

Franchise Tax

PD Fees for Services

Confiscated Drug Money

Fire Department Grants

PD - Grants

Landfill Fees

Grave Opening/Closing

Cemetery Lot Sales

Zoning Permits & Fees

Grant - Kiser Center

Recreation Department Fees/Sponsors
Senior Events

Pool Fees/Concessions

Park Fees/Concessions/Mer/Rental
Investment Earnings

Rent- Land

Sale of General Fund Property

ABC Revenue

Miscellaneous Revenues
Administrative Charges - Enterprise Funds
Fund Balance Appropriated

4,360,000
40,000
30,000
280,000
600
15,000
1,262,017
4,000
22,000
465,000
500

500
30,000
84,000
530,000
22,000
1,000
24,000
5,000
60,000
4,000
115,000
75,000
61,000
1,100
20,000
17,000
15,000
900,000
0

8,443,717



25-26 Recommended Budget Ordinance

25-26 Budget Ordinance

Section 2. The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the General Fund for the Fiscal Year

2025-2026 in accordance with the established chart of accounts:

Governing Body & Legal 98,780
Administration & Finance 1,310,584
Police Department 2,192,760
Fire Department 629,709
Garage Operations 236,981
Public Works Department 372,500
Sanitation Department 486,000
Planning & Zoning 186,575
Economic Development 299,108
Debt Service 955,677
Recreation Department 1,009,503
Parks & Gym 408,300
Pool & Concessions 235,740
Cemetery 21,500
8,443,717

Section 3. It is estimated that the following revenues will be available to the Water & Sewer Fund for

the Fiscal Year 2025-2026:

Water Sales 2,727,041
Sewer Sales 2,787,041
Water Tap Fees 76,000
Water Meter Fees 180,000
Water System Development Fees 250,000
Reconnect Fees 22,000
Penalties 100,000
Admin Activation Fee 20,000
Sewer Tap Fees 46,000
Sewer System Development Fees 85,000
Fund Balance Appropriated 0
6,293,082

Section 4. The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Water & Sewer Fund for the Fiscal
Year2025-2026 in accordance with the established chart of accounts:

Debt Service

Administration Share
Water/Wastewater Treatment
Public Works

New Line Distribution

570,248
825,000
3,032,879
1,678,239
186,716

6,293,082



25-26 Recommended Budget Ordinance
25-26 Budget Ordinance

Section 5. It is estimated that the following revenues will be available to the Natural Gas Fund for the
Fiscal Year 2025-2026:

Sales of Gas $ 1,257,000
Cut-ons and Reconnects 1,500
Fund Balance Appropriated 0

$ 1,258,500

Section 6. The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Natural Gas Fund for the Fiscal Year
2025-2026 in accordance with the established chart of accounts:

Debt Service $ 72,932

Administration Share 0

Gas Operations 1,185,568
$ 1,258,500

Section 7. It is estimated that the following revenues will be available to.the Storm Water Fund for the
Fiscal Year 2025-2026:

Storm Water Charges $ 330,000

$ 330,000

Section 8. The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Storm Water Fund for the Fiscal Year
2025-2026 in accordance with the established chart of accounts:

Debt Service $ 36,555

Administrative Share 75,000

Operations 218,445
$ 330,000

Section 9. The following revenues are expected to be available in the Powell Bill Fund for the Fiscal
Year 2025-2026:

State Powell Bill'/Allocation $ 220,000

$ 220,000

Section 10. The following amount is hereby appropriated in the Powell Bill Fund for the Fiscal Year
2025-2026 in accordance with the established chart of accounts:

Debt Service $ 100,815
Street Operations 119,185

$ 220,000



25-26 Recommended Budget Ordinance
25-26 Budget Ordinance
Section 11. There is hereby levied a tax rate of fifty-five cents ($.55) per one hundred dollars

($100) valuation of property taxes as of January 1, 2025, for the purpose of raising the revenue
listed 'Ad Valorem Taxes' in the General Fund. This rate is on a total valuation of property for the
purposes of taxation of $840,599,289 and an estimated rate of collection of 97%.

Section 12: Fees shall be charged as outlined in Appendix A starting July 1, 2025.

Section 13: All other fees for service, surcharges, etc. previously established by Council shall remain
the same unless adjusted at some future date. All billing not paid on the due date is subjectto a 15%
late penalty.

Section 14: The Budget Officer is hereby authorized to transfer appropriations within a fund.as
contained herein as follows:

a) The Budget Officer may transfer amounts between the object of expenditure within a
department as defined by Ordinance without limitations.

b) The Budget Officer may transfer amounts up to $7,500 between departments as
designed by Ordinance of the same fund with report on such transfers at the next
regular Council meeting.

Section 15: Copies of the Budget Ordinance shall be furnished to all Department Heads for guidance
in the disbursement of funds. A copy shall always be available.for public inspections in the City
Clerk’s office.

Adopted this the 9" day of June 2025.

Becky S. Smith, Mayor

Hydeia Y. Hayes, City Clerk






25-26 Recommended Fee Schedule

City of Bessemer City
APPENDIX A- Fee Schedule

Service 2025-2026
Water
Treated Water- Inside City Limits
minimum per month for 2,000 gallons | $ 14.50
per 1,000 gallons over 2,000 gallons | $ 8.90
Treated Water- Outside City Limits
minimum per month for 2,000 gallons | $ 29.00
per 1,000 gallons over 2,000 gallons | $ 17.80
Water Deposit- Residential
Credit Score- Approved | $ 250.00
Credit Score- Caution.| $ 300.00
Credit Score- Alert| $ 450.00
Water Deposit- Non-Residential $ 900.00
Water Reconnect Fee
First and Second Reconnect | $ 35.00
Third Reconnect and After | $ 70.00
Broken Lock Fee $ 300.00
Meter Tampering Fee $ 500.00
Utility Cut off Fee $ 20.00
Utility Late Fee 15%
New Service Administrative Fee $ 50.00
Illegal Turn-on Fee $ 200.00
Meter Reset Fee $ 300.00
Water Tap Fees (plus cost of meter)
.75inch line | $ 1,100.00
1inchline|$  1,500.00
1.5inchline|$  2,000.00
2inchline|$  2,500.00
Sewer
Sewer- Inside City Limits
minimum per month for 2,000 gallons of water metered | $ 21.50
per 1,000 gallons over 2,000 gallons of water metered | $ 16.50
per 1,000 gallons over 1,000,000 gallons of water metered | $ 11.50
Sewer- Outside City Limits
minimum per month for 2,000 gallons of water metered | $ 43.00
per 1,000 gallons over 2,000 gallons of water metered | $ 33.00
per 1,000 gallons over 1,000,000 gallons of water metered | $ 23.00




25-26 Recommended Fee Schedule

Service 2025-2026
Sewer Tap Fees
4Inchline|$ 1,000.00
6InchLine|$ 1,500.00
Sewer User Surcharges
High Strength BOD >250 mg/L perlb. | $ 0.0240
High Strength TSS >250 mg/L perlb. | $ 0.0450
High Strength O & G >100 mg/L perlb. | $ 0.1000
High Strength TKN >25 mg/L per lb. | $ 0.4830
High Strength TP >mg/L perlb. | $ 0.8470
Initial Issuance Permit
SIU|$ 1;,000.00
Local Permit Fee | $ 500.00
Annual Maintenance Permit
SIU| $ 250.00
Local Permit Fee | $ 100.00
Reopening Permit
SIU| $ 500.00
LocalPermit Fee | $ 100.00
Composite Sample Event $ 300.00
Acute Toxicity Screening $ 600.00
Chronic Toxicity Screening $ 1,200.00
TTO with Pesticide Analysis $ 550.00
TTO without Pesticide Analysis $ 500.00
System Development Fees
System development fees are calculated by the Council-Adopted
System Development Fee Schedule Calculator. Examples are provided
below:
Residential Dwelling Unit
2bedroom|$  3,861.00
3bedroom|$ 4,211.00
4 bedroom|$ 5,573.00
Full-Service Restaurant (20 employee) $ 4,869.00
Convenience Store with Food Preparation (2,500 square feet) $ 16,230.00
Stores and Shopping Centers without Food Service (25,000 sf. ft.) $ 27,050.00
Availability Fees
Water and Sewer (per month)
Inside Customer Connected to Water but Not Sewer | $ 21.50
Inside Customer Connected to Sewer but not Water | $ 80.00

Inside Customer not Connected to Water or Sewer

&

36.00




25-26 Recommended Fee Schedule

Service 2025-2026
Meter Checks and Reports
One Check Per Year Free
Defective Meter Replacement Free
Non-Defective Meter Check (plus cost of test) | $ 25.00
Meter Profile Report | $ 25.00
Stormwater
Residential (per month) $ 6.00
Non-Residential (per month)
MMR | $ 4.50
Calculation based on Council-Adopted Impervious Surface Study
ERU: 3,286 sf. ft.
Formula: (impervious surface sq. ft. / ERU) X residential rate = non-
residential rate
Solid Waste
Per Container (Weekly Pickup) $ 16.00
Per Container (Bi-Weekly; Commercial Only) $ 32.00
Planning Board/Board of Adjustment
Conditional Rezoning Request $ 1,500.00
General Rezoning Request $ 1,000.00
Zoning Text Amendment Request $ 800.00
Conditional Use Permit $ 1,500.00
Special Use Permit $ 700.00
Variance Request $ 500.00
Land Development Code Appeal $ 500.00

Zoning Permits

Zoning Permit - Residential $ 100.00
Zoning Permit - Non-Residential Change of Use $ 100.00
Zoning Permit - Home Occupation $ 100.00
Zoning Verification Letter $ 250.00
Demolition Permit $ 100.00
Temporary Use Permit $ 150.00
Sign Permit $ 100.00
Fence Permit $ 25.00
Driveway Permit $ 50.00
Accessory Structure (Including ADU) $ 100.00
Recombination Plat $ 100.00




25-26 Recommended Fee Schedule

Service 2025-2026
Residential Development- Small Scale
Individual Single Family New Construction $ 200.00
Multi-Family New Construction (Duplex, Triplex)
Base Fee | $ 200.00
PerUnit| $ 50.00
Addition to Existing Home $ 100.00
Subdivision Resulting in No More Than 5 Lots Plat $ 400.00
Subdivision Exempt Under NC GS 160D-802 Plat $ 400.00
Residential Development- Large Scale
Preliminary Plat Review Up to 50 Lots/Units
Base Fee.| $ 300.00
Per Lot/Dwelling Unit | '$ 50.00
Preliminary Plat Review More Than 50 Lots/Units
BaseFee | $ 800.00
Per Lot/Dwelling Unit | $ 50.00
Construction Drawing Review & TRC - First Two Submittals (plus
. ] $ 1,500.00
engineering cost)
Construction Drawing Review & TRC - Subsequent Submittals (plus $  1.000.00
engineering cost) e
Final Plat Review Up to 50 Lots/Units
Base Fee | $ 250.00
Per Lot/Dwelling Unit | $ 15.00
Final Plat Review More Than 50 Lots/Units
Base Fee | $ 500.00
Per Lot/Dwelling Unit | $ 15.00
Non-Residential Development
Telecommunication Tower Permit $ 5,000.00
Telecommunication Tower Permit (Co-Location) $ 500.00
Preliminary Plat Review $ 750.00
Construction Drawing Review & TRC - First Two Submittal (plus
. f $ 2,000.00
engineering costs)
Construction Drawing Review & TRC - Subsequent Submittals (plus $ 1.500.00
engineering cost) R
Final Plat Review $ 500.00
Addition to Existing Structure
Base Fee | $ 350.00
Per 1,000 Square Feet | $ 15.00




25-26 Recommended Fee Schedule

Service 2025-2026
City Council
Code Enforcement Appeal $ 150.00
Annexation Petition $ 700.00
Street/Alley/ROW Closing Petition $ 700.00
Code Enforcement
Grass Cutting
Maintenance Show Up Fee | $ 50.00
Administrative Fee (plus cost of mowing) | $ 200.00
Natural Gas
Base Fee
Residential| $ 10.40
Commercial | $ 10.40
Industrial | $ 8.00
Availability
Residential | $ 8.70
Commercial | $ 9.10
Industrial | $ 200.00
Firm- Interruptible | $ 400.00
Gas Tap (plus cost of meter and installation)
Residential Gas Connection | $ 500.00
Commercial Gas Connection | $ 500.00

Industrial Gas Connection

Industrial Gas Connection- Industrial customers shall reimburse the
City for the installation of the meter set, which includes the piping,
valves, pressure reducing regulator, and meter. New industrial
customers shall bearallcosts to contract with a qualified contractor,
that is approved by the City, to install and connect the service piping
between the main and the meter set.

Gas Extension

Should'it be determined that natural gas service is not available to
install’a service line in a direct path to the meter location, the City will
install up to 100 feet of gas main to accommodate the service
connection. For main extensions that exceed 100 feet, the customer
will be assessed for $10.00 per foot.

Service Line Relocation

$ 300.00




25-26 Recommended Fee Schedule

Service 2025-2026
Meter Upgrades
The City will upgrade customer meters necessitated by changes in
customer equipment. The fee for the meter upgrade shall be the
current cost of the upgrade meter.
Gas Deposits- Residential
Credit Score- Approved | $ 250.00
Credit Score- Caution | $ 325.00
Credit Score-Alert | $ 400.00
Gas Deposits- Non-Residential $ 800.00
Cut-Off List Administrative Fee $ 20.00
Gas Utility Late Fee 15%
Gas Reconnect Fee
First and Second Reconnect{$ 40.00
Third Reconnect andAfter | $ 80.00
After Hours Reconnect $ 125.00
New Service Administrative Fee $ 50.00
Seasonal Reconnect $ 100.00
Other Fees
Return Check Fee $ 35.00
Copies
B&W Upto 8.5 X 14 (per page) | $ 0.50
Colorup to 8.5 X 14 (per page) | $ 0.75
Cemetery Fees
Cemetery Lots $ 1,000.00
Grave Marking Fee $ 100.00
Grave Opening (plus contractor price) $ 100.00
Motor Vehicle
Motor Vehicle Tag Fee $ 30.00




Bessemer City
NORTH CAROLINA mstis %JM@/@ %ﬁ

RESOLUTION DIRECTING THE CLERK TO INVESTIGATE
A PETITION RECEIVED UNDER N.C.G.S. §160A-31

WHEREAS, a petition requesting annexation of an area described in said petition was received on May 15,
2025 by City Council; and

WHEREAS, G.S. 160A-31 provides that the sufficiency of the petition shall be investigated by the City Clerk
before further annexation proceedings may take place; and

WHEREAS, the Council of the City of Bessemer City deems it advisable to proceed in response to this request
for annexation;

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Bessemer City that:

The City Clerk is hereby directed to investigate the sufficiency of the above-described petition and to
certify as soon as possible to the Council the result of her investigation.

Adopted this the 9" day of June 2025

Becky S. Smith, Mayor

Attest:

Hydeia Y. Hayes, City Clerk

COBC-GOVBOD-2024-2025R 13



Bessemer City
NORTH CAROLINA “T””*%w@/// %f;

CERTIFICATION OF SUFFICIENCY

To the City Council and Mayor of Bessemer City, North Carolina:

I, Hydeia Y. Hayes, City Clerk, do hereby certify that | have investigated the petition attached
hereto and have found the following findings:

e Said petition is signed by all owners of real property lying in the area described therein,
in accordance to N.C.G.S. 160A-58.1

e The petition contains an adequate property description of the area proposed for
annexation.

e The area described in the petition is contiguous to the City primary corporate limits, as
defined by G.S. 160A-31.

In witness whereof, | have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the City of Bessemer
City, this 9" day of June 2025

Hydeia Y. Hayes, City Clerk



City of Bessemer City
132 West Virginia Avenue
" Bessemer City, NC 28016

\ (704) 629-5542

I: /11NN

] . www.bessemercity.com
Bessemer City

NORTH CAROLLNA stint }/1:;/; = Dent
- /};' 7 ML i

Petition for Annexation into the Bessemer City City Limits

Section A Submittal Checklist

resubmit the petition with all required materiais. Please carefully check the list below before you submit:

Please include all of the following (check off). If any information is missing from the application package, you will be asked to

Required — An incomplete application will delay the annexation process.

X Written metes and bounds description of the property to be annexed. (Must include in application packet and email
a Microsoft Word version to jwatkins@bessemercity.com). Mark as Exhibit A. Source can be from Survey or Deed.

Mark as Exhibit B.

X Map showing above written metes and bounds description of the property to be annexed in relation to the current city limits

X A Current County Tax Map with parcels included in the annexation request clearly marked. Mark as Exhibit C.

hitps://gis.qastongov.com/

if the property to be annexed is only a portion of an existing parcel. https://gis.qastongov.com/

X Correct Parcel Identification Number(s) (PIN) on second page of application. This is very important. Please indicate

signature for each leqal ownership interest in the property.

Please include signatures of new owners if ownership will change during the annexation process.

X Property Owners’ Signatures, Date of Signatures, and addresses. See page 3 of this application. All real property

owners must sign the application, and such signature must be notarized. An authorized representative must sign on behalf
of each legal entity that holds ownership of the property and such representative’s signature must be notarized. One

X Notary Statements for each signature

X General Warranty Deed showing ownership of the property. Petitioners must submit a title opinion or title insurance if a

general warranty deed is not available. Upon review, a title opinion may be required in addition to a general warranty deed.

N / A Statement of vested rights claimed, if any.

N / A A letter authorizing a developer or agent to handle annexation petition (e.g. withdraw, delay/reactivate petition).

submitted by the deadlines noted in section B of this application, page 2.

X This application form (Sections A, B, C, and D) completed, dated and signed by the property owner(s) and attested




Section B Submittal Deadlines

The City of Bessemer City accepts petitions for annexation at any time. The annexation will become effective immediately
upon adoption of the annexation ordinance by City Council and after the scheduled public hearing unless notified

otherwise by the City Clerk.

(The City reserves the right to make exceptions to this tentative processing schedule for any reason, including when outstanding staff

comments need to be addressed.)

Timeline for Annexation is as follows:
SUBMITTAL: Submit application to the City of Bessemer City

REVIEW BY STAFF: Staff will review the petition and determine if more information is needed.

1ST CITY COUNCIL MEETING: The City Council Meeting is typically held the second Monday of each month. The City Council wilt
pass a resolution directing the City Clerk to investigate the annexation petition. The City Clerk will present to the City Council a

Certificate of Sufficiency indicating that the annexation petition is complete. A resolution setting the date of the public hearing is then

approved.

LEGAL ADVERTISEMENT: A legal advertisement will be published pursuant to NCGS reguirements.

2ND CITY COUNCIL MEETING/PUBLIC HEARING: This City Council Meeting will be the following month’s regular meeting date, the
second Monday of the month. The City Council will either adopt or deny an ordinance to extend the corporate limits of the City of

Bessemer City.

RECORDATION: If the annexation is approved by the City Council, the City will have the Annexation Plats recorded at the Gaston

County Register of Deeds. Gaston County will keep one of the recorded plats, one copy will be returned to the City.

Section C Summary Information / Metes and Bounds Descriptions

Development Project Name G\ | ngat Rldge

Street Address 1103 N. 14th Street

Gaston County County Property Identification Number(s) fist below

PIN.151644 PIN.151640 PIN.151645

P.L.N. P.LN. P.L.N.

Acreage of Annexation Site 38 52

Annexation site is requesting connection to City of Bessemer City Water . Sewer and/or Natural Gas_D_.

Person to contact if there are questions about the petition LC3 Consulting

Name Kyle Crowe

address 39() Inland Cove Court Clover, SC 29710

Phone 803-415-4866 Fax#N/A Email k crowe@lc3consulting.com




Written metes and bounds description of property to be annexed
Attach additional sheets if necessary. Petitioners must submit an electronic Microsoft Word version. Petitioners must email

an electronic copy to jwatkins@bessemercity.com.




Section D Annexation Petition

State of North Carolina, Gaston County, Petition of Annexation of Property to the City of Bessemer City, North Carolina

Part 1 The undersigned, being all the owners of the real property described in this application (Section C) respectfully request the
annexation of said property to the City of Bessemer City, North Carolina. The petitioners understand and agree that any utilities
that must be extended to the annexed area are the responsibility of the developers or successive property owners. The
property to be annexed is:

X Contiguous to the present primary corporate limits of the City of Bessemer City, North Carolina, or

Satellite (Not Contiguous) to the municipal limits of the City of Bessemer City, and meets all of the requirements for NCGS
§160A-58.1(b). This includes that if any portion of an area of the proposed annexation is part of a subdivision, all of the

subdivision must be included.

Part 2 NC General Statutes require petitioners of both contiguous and satellite annexations to file a signed statement declaring
whether vested rights have been established in accordance with G.S.160A-385.1 or 153A-344.1 for properties subject to the petition.

Do you declare such vested rights for the property subject to this petition? Yes No X

If yes, please submit proof that vested rights have been granted by governing board. | hereby declare that my failure to disclose
existence of a vested right terminates any vested right previously acquired for this property.

Signed this?'$' __ day of March .202% by the owners of the property described in Section C.

Owner’s Signature(s)

Include signatures of new owners if ownership will change during the annexation process.
Indicate if owner is signing on behalf of legal entity and in what capacity.

Print Name Tommy and Ann Millwood / Phone
Address 14 Mountain Laurel Ln, Dallas, Nwﬁ(

Signature // Date

Print Name MelvinJefiner Jr and Suzanne Kiser Phone

Address 1 Puetts Chapel Road, Bessemer Cily, NC 28016

Signature Date

Print Name__{ ﬂt&'bﬁm EE?[J de“p;-c)n§ G@Vp L (erone
nadross_ 4O Cormel Poad  Sucde 10| ; tUa— nC FBIr2e
| Date 5‘?‘9’f

Signature

Print Name Phone
Address

Signature Date
Print Name, Phone
Address

Signature, Date
Print Name Phone
Address

Signature Date
Print Name Phone
Address

Signature Date

A notary statement must be completely filled out for each signature.




PETITION MUST BE NOTARIZED

State of: “\\ m‘\"f 0 A\QO N A
County of: WNECKLENISV

Use this section for individual landowners.

|T‘Q?(\1<\\\B i%hota!y%?me] a Notary Public for said County and State, do hereby certify that the
pz'\f P”?Q‘l

&Rygptt-
appeared beforelme this day and acknowledged the due execution of the foregoing instrument.

landowner, - ‘f ame of Landowner], as stated on the annexation petition, personally

Use this section for all land owners that are not individuals, such as (without limitation) corporate land
owners, properties held in an estate, properties held in trust, etc.

l, (\%‘(\\\ ’R \\)\‘Q_S_'s\eﬂ\fotary:s Name], a Notary Public for said County and State, do hereby

certify that Kﬁ,”( 0[;}’,_}/\‘ [Representative for Landowner], a duly authorized representative
for DEY At 9{ S f andowner], mentioned on the annexation petition as the landowner,
personaily came before me this day and acknowledged that he is thaszd e [Title] of

said land owner, and acknowledged on behalf of said landowner, the due execution of the foregoing

instrument.

Use this section for all individual landowners that are having a Power-of-Attorney execute the
Annexation Request.

I, [Notary’s Namel, a Notary Public for Said County and State, do hereby certify

that, [Attorney-In-Fact’s Namel, Attorney-in-Fact for

, [Name of Landowner(s)] personally appeared before me this day, and

being by me duly sworn, say that he/she executed the foregoing and annexed instrument for and on behalf of
said Landowner(s) and that his/her authority to execute and acknowledge said instrument is contained in an
instrument duly executed, acknowledged and recorded in the office of the Register of Deeds in the County of
, State of . [County & State of Recording Office] on the __ day of

, 20, [Date of Recording of the Document] and that this instrument was executed under and by virtue
of the authority given by said instrument granting him power of attorney. | further certify that the said Attorney-

In-Fact acknowledged the due execution of the foregoing instrument for the purposed therein

expressed for and on behalf of said Landowners.

Witness my hand and official seal thi@}aay ofh\;, 20Q5 Mh/ 4/% M

Notary Public
My commission expires 1= QL\' &1 : ué

[SEAL of Nma@r P‘ubjl

‘\

-‘\‘ \)_‘\ ‘t‘-“—‘
.-

N

N ota‘l}{% ,Sta@p; AR

4,
"-‘uun et



Type: CONSOLIDATED REAL PROPERTY
Recorded: 4/1/2025 11:05:21 AM

Fee Amt: $926.00 Page 1 of 5
Revenue Tax: $900.00

Gaston County, NC Register Of Deeds
Jonathan L. Fletcher, Registrar

BK 5547 PG 1109 - 1113

NORTH CAROLINA GENERAL WARRANTY DEED

As to County only property: p/o Tax Parcel 151644 PIN: 3517- 61- 9550 BMP: 11 013 002 00 000
As o Bessemer City property: plo Tax Parcel: 151645 PIN: 3517-71-4367 BMP: 11 013 00201000

Excise Tax = $900.00

Notice per NCGS §105-317.2: The below property [ Jis—[ X ]is not - a primary residence of the Grantor
Prepared by & Mail to: R. Steven Smith, Attorney PO Box 809 Paw Creek, NC 28130-0809

Title Insurance with Investors Title 202510513GA

index Description: Metes & Bounds

This Deed made this 31% day of March 2025 by and between:

GRANTOR GRANTEE
Melvin Luther Kiser, Jr. Development Solutions Group, LLC
& spouse, a North Carolina limited liability company,
Suzanne P. Kiser having Secretary of State ID# 1258264
1411 Puetts Chapel Road 6401 Carmel Road, Ste. 101
Bessemer City, NC 28016-9582 Charlotte, NC 28226-8364

The designation Grantor and Grantee as used herein shall include said parties, their heirs,
successors, and assigns, and shall include singular, plural, masculine, feminine or neuter as
required by context.

WITNESSETH, that the Grantor, for a valuable consideration paid by the Grantee, the
receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, has and by these presents does grant,
bargain, sell and convey unto the Grantee, in fee simple, all that certain lot or parcel of
land situated in Crowders Mountain Townshjp, with a portion being in the Town of
Bessemer City, in Gaston County, North Carolina and more particularly described as
follows:

See attached Exhibit A which is incorporated herein by reference.

Derivation: Being most of Tract One of the property that Melvin Luther Kiser, Jr. et uxor
conveyed to Melvin Luther Kiser, Jr. and wife, Suzanne P. Kiser as Tenants by the
Entireties by deed filed October 14, 2022 in Book 5371 page 1347. Scrivener’s Note:
For a chain of title see: Book 2339 page 561 (Tract 5), Book 1816 page 119, Book 1000
page 337, Book 152 page 434 and Book 140 page 143, all in the Gaston County
Registry.

See Restrictive Covenants in Attached Exhibit B, which is incorporated herein by
reference.

submitted electronically by "R Steven Smith Attorney"
in compliance with North carolina statutes governing recordable documents
and the terms of the submitter agreement with the Gaston cCounty Register of Deeds.



TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the aforesaid lot or parcel of land and all privileges and
appurtenances thereto belonging to the Grantee in fee simple.

And the Grantor covenants with the Grantee, that Grantor is seized of the premises in fee
simple, has the right to convey the same in fee simple, that title is marketable and free
and clear of all encumbrances, and that Grantor will warrant and defend the title against
the lawful claims of all persons whomsoever except for the exceptions hereinafter stated.

Title to the property hereinabove described is subject fo the following exceptions:
3) All such valid and enforceable restrictions and easements as may appear of

record;
4) The lien of ad valorem taxes for the current year,

In witness whereof, the Grantor has set his hand and seal, the day and year first above
written.

M(smu J,a:wz_ﬁ Haen  (SEAL)
Melvin Luther Kiser, Jr. Suzange P. Kiser

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA )
)
COUNTY OF GASTON )
I, a Notary Public of the County of 45 704 and State aforesaid, certify that
Melvin Luther Kiser, Jr. & spouse, Suzanne P. Kiser

personally came before me this day and acknowledged the execution of the foregoing
instrument. Witness my hand official stamp or seal, this March 31, 2025.

ANy, é% ; 22:&; ! gi Egﬁz é;
ng“a‘RPENZé"’h’
& ",

...... "™, Notary Public for North Carolina
Al % My Commission Expires: g2 -05-2024

-

v
<
T
T
Ae
iiny

L. N
% . F
% - . Ly
%, E— &
o, o
u e

" v
'y &
s mh!u i



Exhibit A
{ egal Description

Located in Crowders Mountain Township (with a portion of said property located in the
Town of Bessemer City), in Gaston County and being more particularly described as
follows:

BEGINNING at a new iron located in the edge of the right-of-way for N.C. Highway No.
274, said new iron being located North 87° 35’ 07" West 12.75 feet from an existing iron
located North 87° 35' 07" West 12.74 feet from an existing iron located in the right-of-
way for NC Highway No. 274, and also being located with the arc of a circular curve to
the right, with a radius of 1,078.86 feet, a distance of 483.19 feet (chord South 20° 42’
13" East 479.16 feet) and thence, South 08° 16’ 35" East 747.03 feet from the
southeasternmost comer of lot conveyed to Wooten by deed recorded in Book 1180
page 129, and running from said point of BEGINNING, two lines as follows:

1) North 87° 35’ 07" West 587.26 feet to a new iron pin; running thence,

2) South 26° 37’ 58” West 63.19 feet to a point in the centerline of the branch, along
line of land conveyed to Toomey by deed recorded in Book 1032 page 40; thence with
Toomey Property, along the centerline of a branch, thirty-two courses and distances:
1) North 86° 05’ 06" West 62.36 feet to a point; thence,

2) North 84° 12’ 41" West 46.85 feet to a point; thence,

3) North 62° 04’ 16” West 14.85 feet to a point; thence,

4) South 71° 57' 02" West 14.25 feet to a point; thence,

5) North 52° 37" 51” West 75.19 feet to a point; thence,

6) North 82° 12’ 09" West 12.64 feet to a point; thence,

7) North 26° 40’ 48” West 15.43 feet to a point; thence,

8) North 78° 23’ 29” West 15.23 feet to a point; thence,

9) North 47° 38’ 40” West 22.76 feet to a point; thence,

10) North 32° 30’ 48” West 33.96 feet to a point; thence,

11) North 65° 59’ 36” West 19.71 feet to a point; thence,

12) North 41° 26’ 50” West 26.98 feet to a point; thence,

13) North 34° 35’ 59” West 30.05 feet to a point; thence,

14) North 77° 41’ 29” West 22.22 feet to a point; thence,

15) North 24° 26" 45” West 20.42 feet to a point; thence,

16) North 54° 57' 25” East 17.41 feet to a point; thence,

17) North 21° 11’ 43” West 22.21 feet to a point; thence,

18) North 56° 34’ 27” West 34.96 feet to a point; thence,

19) North 65° 58’ 10” East 10.99 feet to a point; thence,

20) North 69° 29’ 14” West 33.89 feet to a point; thence,

21) North 12° 21’ 45" East 14.23 feet to a point; thence,

22) North 58° 37’ 00” West 48.98 feet to a point; thence,

23) North 15° 24’ 49” West 14.69 feet to a point; thence,

24) North 83° 20’ 56” West 18.23 feet to a point; thence,

25) North 41° 39’ 40” West 7.38 feet to a point; thence,

26) North 38° 55’ 01” East 17.89 feet to a point, thence,

27) North 46° 36’ 30” West 8.29 feet to a point; thence,

28) South 71° 05’ 57" West 12.18 feet to a point; thence,

29) North 49° 50’ 21” West 48.93 feet to a point; thence, %

30) North 07° 16’ 12” West 12.30 feet to a point; thence,

31) North 30° 08’ 29” West 52.99 feet to a point; thence,

32) South 62° 05’ 41” West 19.48 feet to a point; thence with Toomey land along the
branch, nine lines as follows:

1) North 33° 04’ 58” West 24.02 feet to a point; thence,

2) North 05° 10’ 33” West 26.98 feet to a point; thence,

3) North 65° 54' 57" West 51.34 feet to a point; thence,

4) North 10° 23’ 18” West 12.41 feet; thence,

5) North 67° 34’ 42" West 18.05 feet to a point; thence,

6) South 72° 38’ 33” West 18.97 feet to a point; thence,

7) South 46° 50' 27" West 19.86 feet to a point; thence,

8) North 45° 26’ 07” West 34.03 feet to a point; thence,

9) North 11° 20’ 19” West 100.22 feet to a point; continuing along the branch with
Kiser property recorded in deed in Book 938 page 531, the following three courses and
distances:



1) North 79° 22’ 09" West 37.74 feet to a point; thence,

2) South 74° 02’ 55” West 18.01 feet to a point; thence,

3) North 87° 17" 59" West 17.13 feet to a point in the southwestern comer of Dameron
property recorded in deed in Book 1472 page 545 and deed in Book 1450 page 506;
thence along Dameron property, North 50° 55’ 12” East 1002.76 feet, passing an
existing iron pin at 27.13 feet to an existing iron, the northwestem corner of Gnegy
recorded in dead in Book 646 page 123 and southwestern corner of Gnegy recorded in
deed in Book 490 page 301; thence, South 50° 35’ 42” East 236.19 feet to a new iron
pin at the southeastern corner of Wooten property recorded in deed in Book 1180 page
129; thence with Wooten property, North §0° 59’ 18” East 197.97 feet to a new iron pin
located in the edge of the right-of-way for NC Highway No. 274; running the two lines
with the southwestern edge of the right-of-way for NC Highway No. 274, two lines as
follows:

1) with arc of a circle to the right, with radius of 1,078.86 feet, a distance of 483.19 feet
(chord South 20° 42’ 13” East 479.16 feet) and thence,

2) South 08° 16’ 35” East 747.03 feet to the point of BEGINNING, containing 25.235
acres, in accordance with a plat prepared by R & W Engineering, Inc. entitled "Boundary
Survey of Wolfe Property,” dated July 1986.

LESS AND EXCEPT:

Located in Crowders Mountain Township, with a portion said property being in the Town
of Bessemer City, in Gaston County and

Beginning at an existing iron pin in the westerly margin of North 14" Street; said
Beginning also being the Beginning point in deed described in Book 3158 page 168,
thence from said Beginning and running with the northerly conterminous line of property
that Larry Lee Davis conveyed to Melvin Luther Kiser, Jr. and wife, Suzanne P. Kiser by
deed filed November 20, 2000 in Book 3158 page 168,

North 86° 52' 58” West, passing an existing iron rebar marking the boundary between
Crowders Mountain Township and the Town of Bessemer City at 224.45 feet, for a total
distance of 434.17 feet to a new #4 rebar with cap set; thence, with new lines
bifurcating Tract One of the property that Melvin Luther Kiser, Jr. et uxor conveyed to
Melvin Luther Kiser, Jr. and wife, Suzanne P. Kiser as Tenants by the Entireties by
deed filed October 14, 2022 in Book 5371 page 1347, the following four courses and
distances:

1) North 06° 05’ 29” West 163.18 feet to a new #4 rebar with cap set; thence,

2) North 58° 30’ 51” East 130.74 feet to new #4 rebar with cap set; thence,

North 82° 56’ 23” East, passing a calculated point marking the boundary between
Crowders Mountain Township and the Town of Bessemer City at 80.19 feet, for a total
distance of 304.26 feet to new #4 rebar with cap set; thence with the westerly margin of
the 60-foot right-of-way for North 14" Street,

South 07° 40’ 57" East 298.08 feet to the point and place of BEGINNING, containing
2.450 acres (106,707 square feet), more or less, [with Crowders Mountain Township =
(44,897 square feet) 1.031 acres and Bessemer City = (61,810 square feet) 1.419
acres], all as shown on map of survey of March 17, 2025 of Jennifer Marks, NCPLS of
BL Companies.



EXHIBIT "B"
RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS TO PROPERTY

The property described in this Warranty Deed is conveyed by Grantor to Grantee, subject to the following
restrictions and covenants, which shall run with the property. In the event of a conflict with more restrictive
laws or regulations of any state, county, municipality, or other govemmental authority, the more reslrictive
provisions shall apply and control.

10.

1.

Development Density: No more than 3 houses per acre for development.

Single-Family Dwelling Construction: A single-family dwelling on the Property must be site-built and
constructed from new or unused building materials.

Foundation and Exterior Walls. No less than 50% of the exterior front-fagade of all dwellings must be
constructed of materials utilizing non-lap siding.

Driveways. Driveways for dwellings shafl be concrete.

Minimum Sauare Footage for Dwellings. Single-family dwellings must have a minimum of 1,400 square
feet of heated living area, excluding any square foctage of garages, porches, storage areas, or other
non-heated and unfinished areas to the dwelling.

Roof Pitch and Materials. Single-family dwellings shall have roofs of no less than a 6-foot pitch and 12-
foot rise and be covered in architectural shingles.

Garage Requirements. Each dwelling shall have an attached and fully enclosed one or two car garage.

Accessory Buildings. One accessory building shall be allowed for each lot an the Property and shall be
located within 35 feet of such lot's rear property line but no closer than 10 feet to the side property lines
of the lot. Under no circumstances shall any accessory building be used for business or commercial
uses or be used in such a way which would create or constitute an annoyance or nuisance for

surrounding property owners.

Fences and Basketball Goals. Basketball goals if otherwise allowed shall be placed in any event at the
rear of the structure (or in the backyard) but not within a street or right-of-way.
Fences as allowed shall not be constructed (or of a style resembling) chain-link.

Vehicles and Transportation Modes Allowed on Lots, Streets, and Roads. Motorcycles, mini-bikes,
mopeds, all-terrain vehicles, go-carts, and similar modes of transportation shall not be aperated on any

developed or undeveloped lot or any street within the Property unless the same are licensed and are
used solely for the purpose of providing the operators thereof with a means of transportation to and from
the operator's residence.

Signage. No sign of any type shall be displayed or placed on any building lot except “for rent” or “for
sale” signs, and shall nonetheless not exceed three (3) square feet in size to the face of the sign or be
placed at a height exceeding three (3) feet above the surface of the ground. Nothing contained herein
shall prevent any builder, contractor, lender, or real estate brokerage firm from placing a sign on a lot
while a dwelling is being constructed thereon, provided that such signage shall be removed from the {ot
prior to the time the dwelling is occupied.

Pets and Animals. Exotic pets and other animals, birds, or reptiles, including but not limited to livestock,
poultry, pot-bellied pigs, and swine, are not pemmitted and shall not be raised or kept on any lot. This
restriction shall not apply to dogs, cats, or other comman household pets, provided that such pet is not
bred, kept, or maintained for commercial purposes, and provided that their existence is in no way
noxious, dangerous, unpleasant, or of a nature that might diminish the enjoyment and use of other
residents and owners in proximity to the lot on which the pet is located.

Dogs must be kept on a leash while being walked or otherwise fenced within the owner’s lot.



Type: CONSOLIDATED REAL PROPERTY
Recorded: 4/1/2025 11:06:12 AM

Fee Amt: $26.00 Page 10of5

Revenue Tax: $0.00

Gaston County, NC Register Of Deeds
Jonathan L. Fletcher, Registrar

BK 5547 PG 1114 -1118

NORTH CAROLINA NON-WARRANTY DEED

As fo County only property: plo Tax Parcel 151644 PIN: 3517- 61- 9550 BMP: 11 013 002 00 000
As to Bessemer City property: plo Tax Parcel: 151645 PIN: 3517-71-4367 BMP. 11 013 002 01 000

Excise Tax = $0.00

Notice per NCGS §105-317.2: The below property [ Jis—[ X ] is not - a primary residence of the Grantor
Prepared by & Mail to: R. Steven Smith, Attorney PO Box 809 Paw Creek, NC 28130-0809
Title Insurance with Investors Title 202510513GA

Index Description: Metes & Bounds

This Deed made this 315t day of March 2025 by and between:

GRANTOR GRANTEE
Meivin Luther Kiser, Jr. Development Solutions Group, LLC
& spouse, a North Carolina limited liability company,
Suzanne P. Kiser having Secretary of State ID# 1258264
1411 Puetts Chapel Road 6401 Carmel Road, Ste. 101
Bessemer City, NC 28016-9582 Charlotte, NC 28226-8364

The designation Grantor and Grantee as used herein shall include said parties, their heirs,
successors, and assigns, and shall include singular, plural, masculine, feminine or neuter as
required by context.

WITNESSETH, that the Grantor, for a valuable consideration paid by the Grantee, the
receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, has and by these presents does grant,
bargain, sell and convey unto the Grantee, in fee simple, all that certain lot or parcel of
land situated in Crowders Mountain Township, with a portion being in the Town of
Bessemer City, in Gaston County, North Carolina and more particularly described as

follows:

See attached Exhibit A which is incorporated herein by reference.

Derivation: Being most of Tract One of the property that Melvin Luther Kiser, Jr. et uxor
conveyed to Melvin Luther Kiser, Jr. and wife, Suzanne P. Kiser as Tenants by the
Entireties by deed filed October 14, 2022 in Book 5371 page 1347. Scrivener's Note:
For a chain of title see: Book 2339 page 561 (Tract 5), Book 1816 page 119, Book 1000
page 337, Book 152 page 434 and Book 140 page 143, all in the Gaston County

Registry.

See Restrictive Covenants in Aftached Exhibit B, which is incorporated herein by
reference.

submitted electroni ca'ng by "R Steven smith Attorney"
in compliance with North carolina statutes governing recordable documents
and the terms of the submitter agreement with the Gaston County Register of Deeds.



TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the aforesaid lot or parcel of land and all privileges and
appurtenances thereto belonging to the Grantee in fee simple.

Grantor, makes no warranty, expressed or implied, as to title to the property hereinabove
described.

In witness whereof, the Grantor has set his hand and seal, the day and year first above
written.

ﬂ%«'_ﬁ;_@ém} [ frornt  (SEAL)
Melvin Luther Kiser, Jr. Suzanfie P. Kiser _

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA )
)
COUNTY OF GASTON )
1, a Notary Public of the County of é};:'z 7o and State aforesaid, certify that

Melvin Luther Kiser, Jr. & spouse, Suzanne P. Kiser
personally came before me this day and acknowledged the execution of the foregoing
instrument. Witness my hand official stamp or seal, this March 31, 2025.

.\NN““' ey l'mm
S,
§ wOTAR, Py
E - Notary Public for North Carolina
tosUgLic S § My Commission Expires: O2-05-2024
“Fo.. OF

o
o
o
o

s ©
o, Yo
i



Exhibit A
Legal Description

Located in Crowders Mountain Township, with a portion said property being in the Town
of Bessemer City, in Gaston County and

BEGINNING at an existing iron rebar in the southwesterly margin of the sixty-foot right-
of-way for Tryon Courthouse Road; said Beginning being in the southeasterly
conterminous line of property that Jack W. Wooten and wife, Jean Wooten conveyed to
Regina A. Silvers by deed filed April 12, 1990 in Book 2035 page 988; thence from said
Beginning and running with the southwesterly margin of said Tryon Courthouse Road,
moving to the right (clockwise) with an arc of circle having a delta=25° 39' 40", a radius
of 1.078.88', arc length of 483.19 feet and a chord & distance of

South 20° 06’ 35" East 479.16 feet to an existing iron rebar in the westerly margin of
the sixty-foot right of way of North 14" Street; thence with the westerly margin of North
14t Street,

South 07° 40" 57" East 450.08 feet to a new rebar set; thence with new lines
bifurcating Tract One of that property that Melvin Luther Kiser, Jr. et uxor conveyed to
Melvin Luther Kiser, Jr. and wife, Suzanne P. Kiser by deed filed October 14, 2022 in
Book 5371 page 1347, following three courses and distances:

1) South 82° 56' 23" West 304.26 feet to a new rebar set; thence,

2) South 56° 30' 51" West 130.74 feet to new rebar set; thence,

3) South 06° 05' 29" East 163.18 feet to new rebar set; thence, with northerly and
westerly conterminous lines of property that Larry Lee Davis conveyed to Melvin Luther
Kiser, Jr. and wife, Suzanne P. Kiser by deed filed November 20, 2000 in Book 3158
page 168, the following two courses and distances:

1) North 86° 52' 58" West 153.30 feet to an existing iron rebar; thence,

2) South 27° 05' 54" West 62.82 feet to an existing iron rebar; thence, moving in a
generally northwesterly direction with the approximate centerline of meandering creek
which being the northernly conterminous line of property that Sadie A. Toomy (widow)
conveyed to Tommy Albert Millwood and wife, Ann S. Millwood by deed filed February
2, 1989 in Bock 1960 page 603, the following eleven courses and distances:

1) North 84° 51' 38" West 81.64 feet to a calculated point; thence, ,

2) North 78° 36" 30" West 55.64 feet to a calculated point; thence,

3) North 51° 27" 41" West 166.57 to a calculated point; thence,

4) North 49° 16' 08" West 103.10 feet to a calculated point; thence,

5) North 26° 44' 41" West 57.22 feet fo a calculated point; thence,

6) North 38° 03' 28" West 44.45 feet to a calculated point; thence,

7) North 45° 17' 44" West 111.65 feet to a calculated point; thence,

8) North 43° 48' 28" West 108.26 feet to a caiculated point; thence,

9) North 40° 08' 54" West 96.03 feet to a calculated point; thence,

10) North 84° 53' 37" West 69.26 feet to a calculated point; thence,

11) North 19° 48' 12" West 50.00 feet to a calculated point; thence, continuing to move
in a generally northwesterly direction with the approximate centerline of meandering
creek which being the northerly conterminous line of property that Sharon Kiser
conveyed to Masters Family Holdings, LLC by deed filed December 20, 2023 in Book
5451 page 2324, the following four courses and distances:

1) North 06° 29' 37" West 64.48 feet to a calculated point; thence,

2) North 78° 46' 31" West 37.74 feet to calculated paint; thence,

3) South 74° 38' 33" West 18.01 feetto a calculated point; thence,

4) North 86° 42' 21" West 17.13 feet to a calculated point; thence with a southeasterly
conterminous line of Tract Two of property that Sarah Katheryn Morgan et vir conveyed
to Ernest L. Dameron, Jr. and husband, Jason Morgan by deed filed August 26, 2022 in
Book 5360 page 1491,

North 51° 30’ 50” East, passing an existing iron rebar at 26.79 feet, for a total distance
of 1002.76 feet to an existing iron pipe; thence with the southwesterly conterminous
lines of property that: 1) Roger Dale Gantt et uxor conveyed to Roger Dale Gantt etal
by deed filed November 1, 2016 in Book 4877 page 866 and 2) Jack W. Wooten et uxor
conveyed to Reginia A. Silvers by deed filed April 12, 1990 in Book 2035 page 988,
South 50° 00’ 04” East 236.32 feet to an existing iron rebar; thence continuing with the
southeasterly conterminous line of the said Reginia A. Silvers property (owned now or




formerly),

North 51° 34’ 56” East 197.97 feet to the point and place of BEGINNING, containing
22.842 acres (994,966 square feet), more or less, [with Crowders Mountain Township =
(856,767 square feet) 19.669 acres and Bessemer City = (138,199 square feet) 3.173
acres], rebar set are #4 rebar with cap, all as shown on map of survey of March 17,
2025 of Jennifer Marks, NCPLS of BL Companies.

Being most of Tract One of the property that Melvin Luther Kiser, Jr. et uxor conveyed
to Melvin Luther Kiser, Jr. and wife, Suzanne P. Kiser as Tenants by the Entireties by
deed fited October 14, 2022 in Book 5371 page 1347.

Being portion of: Tax Parcel: 151644 PIN: 3517-61-9550 BMP: 11 013 002 00 000
Being portion of: Tax Parcel: 151645 PIN: 3517-71-4367 BMP: 11 013 002 01 000



EXHIBIT "B’
' RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS TO PROPERTY

The property described in this Warranty Deed is conveyed by Grantor to Grantee, subject to the following
restrictions and covenants, which shall run with the property. In the event of a conflict with more restrictive
laws or regulations of any state, county, municipality, or other govemmental authority, the more restrictive
provisions shall apply and control.

10.

",

Development Density: No more than 3 houses per acre for development.

Single-Family Dwelling Construction: A single-family dwelling on the Property must be site-built and
constructed from new or unused building materials.

Foundation and Exterior Walls. No less than 50% of the exterior front-fagade of all dwellings must be
constructed of materials utilizing non-lap siding.

Driveways. Driveways for dwellings shall be concrete.

Minimum Square Footage for Dwellings. Single-family dwellings must have a minimum of 1,400 square
feet of heated living area, excluding any square footage of garages, porches, storage areas, or other
non-heated and unfinished areas to the dwelling.

Roof Pitch and Materials. Single-family dwellings shall have roofs of no less than a 8-foot pitch and 12-
foot rise and be covered in architectural shingles.

Garage Requirements. Each dwelling shall have an attached and fully enclosed one or two car garage.

Accessory Buildings. One accessory building shall be allowed for each lot on the Property and shall be
located within 35 feet of such lot's rear property line but no closer than 10 feet to the side property lines
of the lot. Under no circumstances shall any accessory building be used for business or commercial
uses or be used in such a way which would create or constitute an annoyance or nuisance for
surrounding property owners.

Fences and Basketball Goals. Basketball goals if otherwise allowed shall be placed in any event at the
rear of the structure {or in the backyard) but not within a street or right-of-way.
Fences as allowed shall not be constructed (or of a style resembling) chain-link.

Vehicles and Transportation Modes Allowed on Lots, Streats, and Roads. Motorcycles, mini-bikes,
mopeds, all-terrain vehicles, go-carts, and similar modes of transportation shall not be operated on any

developed or undeveloped lot or any street within the Property unless the same are licensed and are
used solely for the purpose of providing the operators thereof with a means of transportation to and from
the operator's residence.

Sianage. No sign of any type shall be displayed or placed on any building lot except ‘for rent" or "for
sale” signs, and shall nonetheless not exceed three (3) square feet in size to the face of the sign or be
placed at a height exceeding three (3) feet above the surface of the ground. Nothing contained herein
shall prevent any builder, contractor, lender, or real estate brokerage firm from placing a sign on a lot
while a dwelling is being constructed thereon, provided that such signage shall be removed from the lot
prior o the time the dwelling is occupied.

Pets and Animals. Exotic pets and other animals, birds, or reptiles, including but not limited to livestock,
poultry, pot-bellied pigs, and swine, are not permitted and shall not be raised or kept on any lot. This
restriction shall not apply to dogs, cats, or other common household pets, provided that such pet is not
bred, kept, or maintained for commercial purposes, and provided that their existence is in no way
noxious, dangerous, unpleasant, or of a nature that might diminish the enjoyment and use of other
residents and owners in proximity to the lot on which the pet is located.

Dogs must be kept on a leash while being walked or otherwise fenced within the owner's lot.



Type: CONSOLIDATED REAL PROPERTY
Recorded: 4/1/2025 12:46:11 PM

Fee Amt: $26.00 Page 1 of3

Revenue Tax: $0.00

Gaston County, NC Register Of Deeds
Jonathan L. Fletcher, Registrar

BK 5547 PG 1217 - 1219

NORTH CAROLINA NON-WARRANTY DEED

As to County only property: p/o Tax Parcel 151644 PIN: 3517-61- 9550 BMP: 11 013 002 00 000

As to Bessemer City property: p/o Tax Parcel: 151645 PIN: 3517-71-4367 BMP: 11 013 00201 000
Excise Tax = $0.00

Notice per NCGS §105-317.2: The below praperty [ is—[ X ]is not - a primary residence of the Grantor
Prepared by & Mail to: R. Steven Smith, Attorney PO Box 809 Paw Creek, NC 28130-0809

Index Description: 2.450 acres +/- metes & bounds

This Deed made this 31%t day of March 2025 by and between:

GRANTOR GRANTEE
Melvin Luther Kiser, Jr. Melvin Luther Kiser, Jr.
& spouse, & spouse,
Suzanne P. Kiser Suzanne P. Kiser
1411 Puetts Chapel Road 1411 Puetts Chapel Road
Bessemer City, NC 28016-9582 Bessemer City, NC 28016-9582

The designation Grantor and Grantee as used herein shall include said parties, their heirs,
successors, and assigns, and shall-include singular, plural, masculine, feminine or neuter as
required by context.

WITNESSETH, that the Grantor, for a valuable consideration paid by the Grantee, the
receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, has and by these presents does grant,
bargain, sell and convey unto the Grantee, in fee simple, all that certain lot or parcel of
land situated in Crowders Mountain Township, with a portion being in the Town of
Bessemer City, in Gaston County, North Carolina and more particularly described as
follows:

See attached Exhibit A which is incorporated herein by reference.

Derivation: Being most of Tract One of the property that Melvin Luther Kiser, Jr. et uxor
conveyed to Melvin Luther Kiser, Jr. and wife, Suzanne P. Kiser as Tenants by the
Entireties by deed filed October 14, 2022 in Book 5371 page 1347. Scrivener's Note:
For a chain of title see: Book 2339 page 561 (Tract 5), Book 1816 page 119, Book 1000
page 337, Book 152 page 434 and Book 140 page 143, all in the Gaston County
Registry.

submitted electronically by "R Steven smith Attorney”
in compliance with North carolina statutes governing recordable documents
and the terms of the submitter agreement with the Gaston County Register of Deeds.



TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the aforesaid lot or parcel of land and all privileges and
appurtenances thereto belonging to the Grantee in fee simple.

Grantor, makes no warranty, expressed or implied, as to title to the property hereinabove
described.

in witness whereof, the Grantor has set his hand and seal, the day and year first above
written.

- s ., { _(sEAL) 42““’" ) Y Hedsns (SEAL)
elvin Luther Kiser, Jr. Suzange P. Kiser

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA

)

)

COUNTY OF GASTON )
1, a Notary Public of the County of { z{&; 72 4 and State aforesaid, certify that

Melvin Luther Kiser, Jr. & spouse, Suzanne P. Kiser

personally came before me this day and acknowledged the execution of the foregoing
instrument. Witness my hand official stamp or seal, this March 31, 2025.

AWy,
\.\‘“ ey,
‘\‘a‘\ OLEEEN)""”»
- - - A

-

7 oTARL™,
S OTARy

Notary Public for North Carolina
PP o My Commission Expires: _&2 4 S’ZD?:é

AV
T

=
e =

%
“UHTON O

Y
AV
Enint



Exhibit A
Legal Description

Located in Crowders Mountain Township, with a portion said property being in the Town
of Bessemer City, in Gaston County and

Beginning at an existing iron pin in the westerly margin of North 14" Street; said
Beginning also being the Beginning point in deed described in Book 3158 page 168,
thence from said Beginning and running with the northerly conterminous line of property
that Larry Lee Davis conveyed to Melvin Luther Kiser, Jr. and wife, Suzanne P. Kiser by
deed filed November 20, 2000 in Book 3158 page 168,

North 86° 52’ 58" West, passing an existing iron rebar marking the boundary between
Crowders Mountain Township and the Town of Bessemer City at 224.45 feet, for a total
distance of 434.17 feet to a new #4 rebar with cap set; thence, with new lines
bifurcating Tract One of the property that Melvin Luther Kiser, Jr. et uxor conveyed to
Melvin Luther Kiser, Jr. and wife, Suzanne P. Kiser as Tenants by the Entireties by
deed filed October 14, 2022 in Book 5371 page 1347, the following four courses and
distances:

1) North 06° 05’ 29” West 163.18 feet to a new #4 rebar with cap set; thence,

2) North 56° 30" 51” East 130.74 feet to new #4 rebar with cap set; thence,

North 82° 56’ 23" East, passing a calculated point marking the boundary between
Crowders Mountain Township and the Town of Bessemer City at 80.19 feet, for a total
distance of 304.26 feet to new #4 rebar with cap set; thence with the westerly margin of
the 60-foot right-of-way for North 14" Street,

South 07° 40’ 57" East 298.08 feet to the point and place of BEGINNING, containing
2.450 acres (108,707 square feet), more or less, [with Crowders Mountain Township =
(44,897 square feet) 1.031 acres and Bessemer City = (61,810 square feet) 1.419
acres), all as shown on map of survey of March 17, 2025 of Jennifer Marks, NCPLS of

BL Companies.



Type: CONSOLIDATED REAL PROPERTY
Recorded: 4/1/2025 11:03:17 AM

Fee Amt: $26.00 Page 10f4

Revenue Tax: $0.00

Gaston County, NC Register Of Deeds
Jonathan L. Fletcher, Registrar

BK 5547 PG 1105 - 1108

NORTH CAROLINA NON-WARRANTY DEED

Tax Parcel: 151640 PIN: 3517-60-5819 BMP: 11 013 001 05 000

Excise Tax = $0.00
Notice per NCGS §105-317.2: The below property [ Jis~[ X ]is not - a primary residence of the Grantor
Prepared by & Mail to: R. Steven Smith, Attorney PO Box 809 Paw Creek, NC 28130-0809

Title Insurance with Investors Title 202510514GA

Index Description: Metes & Bounds

This Deed made this 31 day of March 2025 by and between:

GRANTOR GRANTEE
Tommy Albert Millwood Development Solutions Group, LLC
& spouse, a North Carolina limited liability company,
Ann S. Millwood having Secretary of State ID# 1258264
114 Mountain Laurel Lane 6401 Carmel Road, Ste. 101
Dallas, NC 28034-7747 Charlotte, NC 28226-8364

The designation Grantor and Grantee as used herein shall include said parties, their heirs,
successors, and assigns, and shall include singular, plural, masculine, feminine or neuter as
required by context.

WITNESSETH, that the Grantor, for a valuable consideration paid by the Grantee, the
receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, has and by these presents does grant,
bargain, sell and convey unto the Grantee, in fee simple, all that certain lot or parcel of
land situated in Crowders Mountain Township, in Gaston County, North Carolina and
more particularly described as follows:

See attached Exhibit A which is incorporated herein by reference.

Derivation: Being the same property that Sadie A. Toomey (widow) that conveyed to
Tommy Albert Millwood and wife, Ann S. Millwood by deed filed February 2, 1989 in
Book 1960 page 603 in the Gaston County Registry. Prior deeds in Book 1032 page 40
(Tract No. 2) and Book 510 page 202 were reviewed.

submitted electronically by “R Steven Smith Attorney”
in compliance with North Carolina statutes governing recordable documents
and the terms of the submitter agreement with the Gaston County Register of Deeds.



TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the aforesaid lot or parcel of land and all privileges and
appurtenances thereto belonging to the Grantee in fee simple.

Grantor, makes no warranty, expressed or implied, as to title to the property hereinabove
described.

In witness whereof, the Grantor has set his hand and seal, the day and year first above
written.

St A B e,

CFomivy Albert Millwood

" (SEAL)

AaaB=wood
HAan 5. Dl et D

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA )
)
COUNTY OF GASTON )
I, a Notary Public of the County of//ﬁﬂ”/ and State aforesaid, certify that

Tommy Albert Millwood & Ann %Millwood
personally came before me this'day and acknowledged the execution of the foregoing

instrument. Witness my hand offietaj stamp or seal, this March 31, 2025.

//WQM_

“‘uu“'"l“m,'
N

L/
Sad .-.E‘V)?"
3 b
L ~

&
&““s

Y,

';\Q y OT A R F ) %

i 2 Notary Public for North Carolj —

R IR § My Commission Expires: D2 - 2024
% % SO8

s,

K
ig S
a, ON W

"‘lmuu(:"nn»\‘“



Exhibit A
Legal Description

Located in Crowders Mountain Township, in Gaston County and being a portion of Tract
No. 2 of unrecorded plat of W. C. Kiser Estate and being more particularly described as
follows:

BEGINNING at an existing magnail in the roadway of that sixty-foot right of way known
as Secondary Road 1404, also known as Sherwood Drive, said Beginning being in the
easterly line of property that Roy Lee Capps, Jr. et uxor conveyed to Richard A.
Lightner and wife, Sandra L. Lightner by deed filed July 24, 1990 in Book 2055 page
156; thence continuing along the roadway of Sherwood Drive, the following three
courses and distances:

1) North 67° 07' 12" West 199.80 feet to an existing magnail; thence,

2) North 70° 16 12" West 100.36 feet to a point; thence,

3) North 73° 35' 26" West 152.49 feet to existing magnail; thence with the easterly and
northerly conterminous lines of property that C. Allen Lee et uxor conveyed to Sheila
Ann Davis by deed filed September 29, 2016 in Book 4871 page 378, the following two
courses and distances:

1) North 17° 16’ 19" East, passing an existing iron rebar in the northerly margin of the
right-of-way for Sherwood Drive at 32.01 feet, a total distance of 329.82 feet to an
existing iron rebar; thence,

2) North 68° 31' 06" West 148.40 feet to an existing iron rebar; thence with the
northerly conterminous line of property that Cora Lawrence conveyed to C. Allen Lee
and wife, Elizabeth L. Lee by deed filed July 12, 2005 in Book 4141 page 2223,

North 68° 29' 09" West 34.34 feet to existing iron rebar; thence, following the northerly
conterminous line of property that Cora Lawrence conveyed to Elizabeth Larence Lee
by deed filed April 2, 1992 in Book 2168 page 848,

North 69° 02' 14" West 77.25 feet existing iron rebar; thence, with the northerly
conterminous line of property that Elizabeth L. Lee, née Peck et vir conveyed to
Elizabeth L. Lee and husband, C. Allen Lee by deed filed July 15, 2005 in Book 4142
page 2004,

North 69° 12' 06" West 65.38 feet to existing iron rebar; thence with a southeasterly
conterminous line of property that Sharon Kiser conveyed to Masters Family Holdings,
LLC by deed filed December 20, 2023 in Book 5451 page 2324,

North 37° 34' 48" East, passing existing iron pipe at 572.30 feet, for a total distance of
597.44 feet to a calculated point in the centerline of creek; thence, moving in a
generally southeasterly direction along the approximate centerline of the meandering
creek, being further the southwesterly conterminous lines of Tract One of that property
that Melvin Luther Kiser, Jr. et uxor conveyed to Melvin Luther Kiser, Jr. and wife,
Suzanne P. Kiser by deed filed October 14, 2022 in Book 5371 page 1347, the following
eleven courses and distances:

1) South 19° 48' 12" East 50.00 feet to a calculated point; thence,

2) South 84° 53' 37" East 69.26 feet to a calculated point; thence,

3) South 40° 08" 54" East 96.03 feet to a calculated point; thence,

4) South 43° 48’ 28" East 108.26 feet to a calculated point; thence,

5) South 45° 17' 44" East 111.65 feet to a calculated point; thence,

6) South 38° 03' 28" East 44.45 feet to calculated point; thence,

7) South 26° 44' 41" East 57.22 feet to a point; thence,

8) South 49° 16' 08" East 103.10 feet to a calculated point; thence,

9) South 51° 27’ 41" East 156.57 feet to a calculated point; thence,

10) South 78° 36' 30" East 55.64 feet to a calculated point; thence,

11) South 84° 51' 38" East 81.64 feetto an existing iron rebar; thence with a southerly
conterminous line of property that Larry Lee Davis conveyed to Melvin Luther Kiser, Jr.
and wife, Suzanne P. Kiser by deed filed November 20, 2000 in Book 3158 page 168,
South 68° 27' 57" East 126.74 feet to an existing iron pipe; thence with the
northwesterly conterminous line of property that Burlin Sisk, Sr. and wife, Aima Sisk
conveyed to James J. Arruza and wife, Joan S. Arruza by deed filed December 12,
1979 in Book 1314 page 582,

South 31° 16’ 28” West 171.98 feet to existing iron pipe; thence with northwesterly
conterminous line of Tract 2 of the property that Georgia Ranee Wiles et al. conveyed to
Georgia Ranee Wiles and spouse, Cynthia Diane Nicholas by deed filed November 21,



2024 in Book 5519 page 2316,

South 31° 16’ 28” West 147.78 feet to an existing iron rebar, thence following the
northeasterly and northwesterly conterminous lines of property that Roy Lee Capps, Jr.
et uxor conveyed to Richard A. Lightner and wife, Sandra L. Lightner by deed filed July
24, 1990 in Book 2055 page 156, the following two courses and distances:

1) North 75° 47' 10" West 199.98 feet to existing iron rebar; thence,

2) South 37° 44' 40" West, passing an existing iron pipe in the northerly margin of the
right-of-way for Sherwood Drive at 274.33 feet, a total distance of 300.51 feet to the
point and place of BEGINNING, containing a total of (585,435 square feef) 13.440 acres
[with 12,980 square feet located within the Sherwood Drive right-of-way] MORE OR
LESS, all as shown on map of survey of March 17, 2025 of Jennifer Marks, NCPLS of
BL Companies.

Tax Parcel: 151640 PIN: 3517-60-5819 BMP: 11 013 001 05 000



Type: CONSOLIDATED REAL PROPERTY
Recorded: 4/1/2025 11:02:32 AM

Fee Amt: $546.00 Page 10f3

Revenue Tax: $520.00

Gaston County, NC Register Of Deeds
Jonathan L. Fletcher, Registrar

BK 5547 PG 1102 - 1104

NORTH CAROLINA GENERAL WARRANTY DEED

Tax Parcel: 151640 PIN: 3517-60-5819 BMP: 11 013 001 05 000

Excise Tax = $520.00
Notice per NCGS §105-317.2: The below property [ Jis—[ X ]isnot-a primary residence of the Grantor
Prepared by & Mail to: R. Steven Smith, Attorney PO Box 809 Paw Creek, NC 28130-0809

Title Insurance with Investors Title 202510514GA
index Description. Metes & Bounds

This Deed made this 31% day of March 2025 by and between:

GRANTOR GRANTEE
Tommy Albert Mitllwood Development Solutions Group, LLC
& spouse, a North Carolina limited liability company,
Ann S. Millwood having Secretary of State iD# 1258264
114 Mountain Laurel Lane 6401 Camel Road, Ste. 101
Dallas, NC 28034-7747 Charlotte, NC 28226-8364 J

The designation Grantor and Grantee as used herein shall include said parties, their heirs,
successors, and assigns, and shall include singular, plural, masculine, feminine or neuter as
required by context.

WITNESSETH, that the Grantor, for a valuable consideration paid by the Grantee, the
receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, has and by these presents does grant,
bargain, sell and convey unto the Grantee, In fee simple, all that certain lot or parcel of
land situated in Crowders Mountain Township, in Gaston County, North Carolina and
more particularly described as foilows:

See attached Exhibit A which is incorporated herein by reference.

Derivation: Being the same property that Sadie A. Toomey (widow) that conveyed to
Tommy Albert Millwood and wife, Ann S. Millwood by deed filed February 2, 1989 in
Book 1960 page 603 in the Gaston County Registry. Prior deeds in Book 1032 page 40
(Tract No. 2) and Book 510 page 202 were reviewed.

submitted electronically by "R Steven Smith Attorney”
in compliance with North Carolina statutes governing recordable documents
and the terms of the submitter agreement with the Gaston County Register of Deeds.



TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the aforesaid lot or parcel of land and all privileges and
appurtenances thereto belonging to the Grantee in fee simple.

And the Grantor covenants with the Grantee, that Grantor is seized of the premises in fee
simple, has the right to convey the same in fee simple, that title is marketable and free
and clear of all encumbrances, and that Grantor will warrant and defend the title against
the lawful claims of all persons whomsoever except for the exceptions hereinafter stated.

Title to the property hereinabove described is subject to the following exceptions:
1) All such valid and enforceable restrictions and easements as may appear of
record;
2) The lien of ad valorem taxes for the current year;

In witness whereof, the Grantor has set his hand and seal, the day and year first above
written.

m”m"’gtsm) MA@%}

ommy Albert Millwood Arr-BMitwood-

/7”41'/\} o Millvoed

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA )
)
COUNTY OF GASTON )

1, a Notary Public of the County of _é}sﬂ A and State aforesaid, certify that
Tommy Albert Millwood & Annagi. Miliwood

personally came before me this'day and acknowledged the execution of the foregoing
instrument. Witness my hand official. stamp or seal, this March 31, 2025.

LT
“\\\‘ ry,
\‘1\“ op{lﬁ N}. b"‘g
" v “,

S gTARE ™,
L -

Notary Public for North Carolina
My Commission Expires: _&2 -¥57 202L

il
v
T L

»

Ay,
antt gy,
A s,

\ (P

>

3
TN
%, >
s
“, \-‘\é
ity W
Wiy



Exhibit A
Legal Description

Located in Crowders Mountain Township, in Gaston County and Being a portion of
Tract No. 2 of unrecorded plat of the lands of W. C. Kiser Estate and being more
particularly described as follows:

BEGINNING at an iron stake situated in the centerline of Secondary Road No. 1404,
also known as Sherwood Drive, said point of Beginning also the southeast corner of the
praperty of owned now or formerly by Maford C. Lawrence et uxor, (see deed in Book
1032 page 42); thence along the easterly and northerly lines of property that Wayne K.
Kiser et uxor conveyed to Maford C. Lawrence et uxor by deed May 6, 1970 in Book
1032 page 42, the following two courses and distances: 1) North 16° 41’ East 330 feet
to a stake; thence, 2) North 69° 20’ West 325.20 feet to a stake in the southeast line of
Tract No. 5 of the lands of W. C. Kiser Estate as shown upon plat made by Robinson &
Sawyer Inc., Registered Surveyors, July 1966 and revised October 1966; thence along
the southeast line of said Tract No. 5 (property, now or formerly of Sharon Kiser, see
Tract 1 in deed in Book 938 page 531), North 37° 03' East 597.44 feet to a point in the
center of a branch; thence along the center of said branch, the following courses and
distances: South 20° 20" East 50 feet to a point; thence, South 85° 25’ 15" East 69.26
feet to a point; thence, South 40° 40’ 25” East 96.03 feet to a point; thence, South 44°
20’ 10" East 108.26 feet to a point; thence, South 45° 49’ 19" East 111.65 feetto a
point; thence, South 38° 35’ 10” East 44.45 feet to a point; thence, South 27° 16’ 17"
East 57.22 feet to a point; thence, South 49° 47’ 33” East 103.10 feet to a point;
thence, South 51° 59’ 17” East 156.57 feet to a point; thence, South 79° 08’ 11” East
55.64 feet to a point; thence, South 85° 23’ 16” East 81.64 feet to a point; thence,
South 68° 59’ 27" East 126.74 feet to a point, said point being also a common corner
of the property of Lawrence L. Hanell (see deed in Book 646 page 392) and the
property of James J. Arruza (see deed in Book 1314 page 582); thence with the division
line of the property of Sadie A. Toomey, James J. Arruza and Thelma Morgan (see
deed in Book 834 page 25), South 30° 44’ 24” West 319.76 feet to an existing iron
pipe, said iron being also a common corner in the property of Thelma Morgan (see deed
in Book 1228 page 24), and the property of Toomey; thence with the division line of
Toomey and Capps, North 76° 18’ 35” West 199.98 feet to an existing iron pipe in the
division line of Capps and Toomey; thence with the division line of Capps and Toomey;
thence with the division line of Capps and Toomey, South 37° 12’ 31" West 300.51
feet to a point in the centerline of Secondary Road No. 1404; thence with the centerline
of Secondary Road No. 1404, the following courses and distances: North 67° 39’ West
199.80 feet to an iron; thence, North 70° 48’ West 100.36 feet to an iron; thence,
North 74° 07’ 02" West 152.29 feet to the point of BEGINNING, containing 13.44
acres, more or less, all as shown on unrecorded survey made by John W. Lineberger,
NCRLS, dated January 24, 1989.

Tax Parcel: 151640 PIN: 3517-60-5819 BMP: 11 013 001 05 000



Mar 28, 2025 8:23am wyoung G:\JOBS25\04\2500412\DWG\AL250041201.dwg

Layout: AL-1 24x36 100SC

SITE
LOCATION |

LOCATION MAP

LEGEND

NOT TO SCALE

Property Line

Abutter Property Line
Interior GIS Parcel Line
Survey Tie Line
Easement Line
Setback Line

Treeline

Fence

Overhead Wires
Sanitary Sewer

Storm Sewer

Underground Cable Television Line

Municipal Boundary Line
Utility Line Continues
Handhole

Electric Meter

Utility Pole

Utility Pole w/ Light
Guy Wire

Light Pole

Gas Valve

Cleanout

Manhole

Fire Hydrant

Water Valve

Water Meter

Sign

Mail Box

Deciduous Tree

Coniferous Tree

Existing Rebar

Existing Iron Pipe

Existing Concrete Monument
Existing Magnail

Reinforced Concrete Pipe
Now or Formerly
Top of frame

Calculated Point
#4 Rebar w/ Cap Set

¢cggvN 0dS ON

NF
MASTERS FAMLY HOLDINGS, LLC
DB 5451 PG 2324 N
PIN #3517518416 @\'

) h )

/L6

7y &
o / EIR
v/ {3

»Q

PB 85 PG 27

ELIZABETH L. LEE

PB 85 PG 27
PIN 43517600779

15"rep

Inv=903.8 Inv=904.4

Y R
’45‘p/70/f z

g

G/‘gye/
—

AREA TABLE

KISER PROPERTY

SQUARE FEET

ACRES

NEW PARCEL

994,996

22.842

EXEMPTION PARCEL

106,707

2.450

TOTAL

1,101,673

25.292

MILLWOOD PROPERTY

585,435

13.440

TOTAL

585,435

13.440

£IR

SHEILA ANN DAVIS
DB 4871 PG 378

PIN 3517601755

N
08 4141 PG 2223 K
N

N6707'12"W 199.80°

NF
ERNEST L. DAMERON, JR. & VICKIE DAMERON
DB 5360 PG 1491
PIN 3517638473

7
7

ROGER DALE GANTT, ET AL

EIR

’ ” _/5; »,
S49°39°10"E 53.22(Tie)

O
2,

M
MELWN L. KISER, JR. & SUZANNE P. KISER

TRACT ONE
DB 5371 PG 1347
PIN #3517619550
PARCEL #151644

TOTAL AREA

1,101,673 SF OR

Inv=897.7 1
Tele ] N A
Ped. ‘&2’?/

L.
Nﬂ»‘ %) 15 rcp )<\

DB 4877 PG 866
PIN #3517721167

NF
REGINA A. SLVERS
DB 2035 PG 968 /
PIN #3517722088
7>,

B

ER

25292 ACRES

AREA IN TOWNSHIP
901,604 SF OR
20.699 ACRES

AREA IN QTY
200,069 SF OR
4.593 ACRES

NEW PARCEL

AS-SURVEYED
TOTAL AREA
994,966 SF OR
22.842 ACRES

AREA IN TOWNSHIP
856,767 SF OR
19.869 ACRES

AREA IN CITY

138,199 SF OR
3173 ACRES

NEW PROPERTY LINE %

T Bossemer City
\N

Crowders Mountain Township

Temporary Benchmark
60D Nail
EL: 910.65

\ N: 571666.9336
E: 13174951138

SUZANNE P. KISER
TRACT ONE
0B 5371 PG 1347
PIN f3517714367
PARCEL $151645

N
MELWN L KISER, . &

Gas
Marker Post

TOTAL AREA
106,707 SF OR
2450 ACRES

AREA IN TOWNSHIP
44,897 SF OR
1.031 ACRES

AREA IN QTY

80'86¢

nF
TOMMY MLLWOOD & ANN S. MILLWOOD

Temporary Benchmark

60D Nail
£L: 914.64

N: 5705531253

12,980 SF
Inside R/W

Inv=906.8

£ 1316608.0487

I geor 3625095

l _ 20972
N8652'58°W 58747

L

61,810 SF OR
1.419 ACRES

224,45

DB 1960 PG 603

PN £3517605819

PARCEL f151640
AREA

585,435 SF OR
13.440 ACRES

Marker Post

@

CP.

EIR
=~ Sy
V54,

/ —
0%y

NF
SANDRA L. LIGHTNER
DB 2055 PG 156
PIN #3517607499

{74

CP.
13

NF
GEORGIA RANEE WILES &
CYNTHIA DIANE NICHOLSON
DB 5519 PG 2316
PIN 43517700428

San MH
1F=927.64

Inv in=915.8
Inv out=915.8"

San MH
TF=933.58

Inv in=926.6"
Inv out=926.6"

NF
MELWN L. KISER, &R. &
SUZANNE P. KISER
~. _ o DB 3158 PG 168

S PIN 43517703386
/ ~

~

/ \

N

(i 701‘07)

~
~

~

JAMES J. ARRUZA & JOAN S. ARRUZA

DB 1314 PG 582
PIN #3517702628

8'pve

San MH

8 psvc

(
)

Inv in=904.2"

, Inv out=903.7

GENERAL NOTES

1.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

NORTH ARROW AND BEARINGS BASED ON NORTH CAROLINA STATE PLANE
COORDINATE SYSTEM (US.FT NAD1983) AND REFERENCED TO THE NCVRS
SYSTEM BY GPS READINGS BY BL COMPANIES IN FABRUARY 2025.

THE PARCEL HEREON SHOWN IS DETERMINED TO BE ZONE ‘X’ ACCORDING
TO THE FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP FOR THE CITY OF BESSEMER,
COMMUNITY PANEL NO. 3710351700J, EFFECTIVE DATE SEPTEMBER 28,
2007.

THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN HAVE BEEN LOCATED FROM FIELD
SURVEY INFORMATION AND EXISTING DRAWINGS. THE SURVEYOR MAKES NO
GUARANTEES THAT THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN COMPRISE ALL
SUCH UTILITIES IN THE AREA, EITHER IN SERVICE OR ABANDONED. THE
SURVEYOR FURTHER DOES NOT WARRANT THAT THE UNDERGROUND
UTILITIES SHOWN ARE IN THE EXACT LOCATION INDICATED THOUGH THEY
ARE LOCATED AS ACCURATELY AS POSSIBLE FROM INFORMATION
AVAILABLE. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CONFIRM THE LOCATION OF ALL
UTILITIES PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF EXCAVATION.

REFERENCE IS MADE TO THE FOLLOWING DEEDS AND PLATS:

DB 519 PG 2316; DB 1314 PG 582; DB 1960 PG 603; DB 2035 PG 988;
DB 2168 PG 848, DB 3055 PG 156; DB 3158 PG 168; DB 4871 PG 378;
DB 4141 PG 2223; DB 4142 PG 2004; DB 4877 PG 866; DB 5371 PG
1347; DB 5451 PG 2324; PB 85 PG 27.

THIS PROPERTY IS IN BESSEMER CITY ZONING JURISDICTION, ZONING CD —
CONDITIONAL DISTRICT. THE SURVEYOR WAS SUPPLIED NO ZONING REPORT
OR LETTER FOR THE SUBJECT PARCELS SHOWN HEREON.

AREA BY COORDINATE GEOMETRY.
NO GAPS, GORES, OR HIATUSES WERE OBSERVED IN THE PROPERTY.

THERE ARE NO APPARENT ENCROACHMENTS ONTO ADJOINING PROPERTIES,
STREETS, OR EASEMENT AREAS BY ANY BUILDINGS, STRUCTURES OR OTHER
IMPROVEMENTS, AND NO ENCROACHMENTS ONTO THE PROPERTY BY
BUILDINGS, STRUCTURES OR OTHER IMPROVEMENTS SITUATED ON ADJOINING
PROPERTIES.

THE ADDRESS OF THE KISER PROPERTY IS 1103 NORTH 14TH STREET.
THERE WAS NO ADDRESS ASSOCIATED WITH THE MILLWOOD PROPERTY AT
THE TIME OF SURVEY.

THERE WERE NO CLEARLY IDENTIFIABLE PARKING SPACES OBSERVED AT
THE TIME OF THE SURVEY.

TO THE SURVEYOR'S KNOWLEDGE THERE ARE NO PLOTTABLE OFFSITE (IL.E.,
APPURTENANT) EASEMENTS OR SERVITUDES DISCLOSED IN DOCUMENTS
PROVIDED TO OR OBTAINED BY THE SURVEYOR.

NO EVIDENCE OF RECENT EARTH MOVING WORK, BUILDING CONSTRUCTION,
OR BUILDING ADDITIONS OBSERVED IN THE PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE
FIELDWORK.

THERE WAS NO EVIDENCE OF CHANGES IN STREET RIGHT OF WAY LINES,
RECENT STREET OR SIDEWALK CONSTRUCTION OR REPAIRS OBSERVED IN
THE PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE FIELDWORK.

THERE WAS NO EVIDENCE OF SOLID WASTE DUMP, SUMP OR SANITARY
LANDFILLS OBSERVED IN THE PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE FIELDWORK ON
THE SUBJECT PROPERTY.

THERE WERE NO CEMETERIES OBSERVED IN THE PROCESS OF CONDUCTING
FIELDWORK ON THE SUBJECT PROPERTY.

THERE IS DIRECT ACCESS TO THE KISER PARCEL VIA NORTH 14TH STREET
A PUBLIC RIGHT-OF—WAY. THERE IS DIRECT ACCESS TO THE MILLWOOD
PARCEL VIA SHERWOOD DRIVE A PUBLIC RIGHT—OF—WAY.

Line Table

Line # Direction Length (ft)

L1 N 70°16" 12" W 100.36

L2 | N7335 26" W 152.49

L3 N 68° 31" 06" W 148.40

L4 N 68°29' 09" W J4.34

L5 N 69°02° 14" W 77.25

L6 N 69° 12’ 06" W 65.38

L7 | N 0629 37" W 64.48

L8 N 78 46" 31" W 37.74
L9 S 7438 33" W
L10 | N 86°42' 21" W
L1 | §27°05° 54" W
Li2 | S68 27 57" E

L13 | S 84°51' 38" F

18.01

17.13

62.62

126.74

81.64

L14

S 78 36" 30" E

55.64

L15

S51°27 41" E

156.57

L16

S 49° 16° 08" E

103.10

L17

S 2644 41" F

57.22

L18

S 3803 28" F

44.45

L19

S45 17 4" F

111.65

L20

S 4348 28" E

1086.26

L21

S 40" 08 54" F

96.03

L22

S 8453 37" F

69.26

L23

Curve Table

S19°48" 12" F

50.00

L24

Curve #

Length

Radius

Delta

Chord Length

N 69°21"17° W

101.22

Chord Direction L25

1

483.19

1076.86

25° 39" 40°

479.16

N 72° 40° 30" W

153.80

S 20° 06" 35" F L26

1F=920.49
Inv in=917.0"
Inv out=916.9’

100 50 0

GRAPHIC SCALE
100

S ™,

SCALE IN FEET

N 66°12° 17" W

207.00

SURVEYORS CERTIFICATION

TO: DEVELOPMENT SOLUTIONS GROUP, LLC, A NC LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY; INVESTORS

TITLE INSU

RANCE COMPANY.

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED
WERE MADE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS
FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS, JOINTLY ESTABLISHED AND ADOPTED BY ALTA
AND NSPS, AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1-4, 6(b), 8, 9, 11(a), 13, 16, 17, 18 AND 19 OF
TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELD WORK WAS COMPLETED ON MARCH 17, 2025.

DATE OF SURVEY: 03/28/2025

JENNIFER MARKS, PLS
NCPLS #.-5229

; XY2500412.01

Xref (s):

Architecture
Engineering
Environmental
Land Surveying

D
o~

Companies

3420 Toringdon Way
Suite 210
Charlotte, NC 28277
(704) 565-7070
NC ENGINEERING FIRM
LIC. #C-4082

od
(a°4
LLI
A
N
LLI w5
Z O = %)
(n'd
=z O 553
< = 552
N — 0z 3
> = =50
7z E o 2 S
T
) « N = E
O=zwog o
N2 ,f% z
n .Z W=
=z oz < FOE
- g
<C n °2o
>y a)
-l 0 = E > O
LLl ) < CZ)
2 G- =
Xz Eed
(a°4 E % L
LLl E ™ E
- - 20
50 ¢
m
' e
2
>
p—
=
8
2
(@]
Q9
> ©
o
S
Surveyed JC/DB
Drawn JH/WY
Reviewed DB/JM
Scale 1"=100'
Project No. 2500412
Date 03/28/2025
CAD File: AL250041201
Title
ALTA/NSPS
LAND TITLE
SURVEY

Sheet No. 1 of 2

AL-1

© 2025 BL COMPANIES, INC. THESE DRAWINGS SHALL NOT BE UTILIZED BY ANY PERSON, FIRM OR CORPORATION WITHOUT THE SPECIFIC WRITTEN PERMISSION OF BL COMPANIES.




Mar 28, 2025 8:56am wyoung G:\JOBS25\04\2500412\DWG\AL250041201.dwg

Layout: AL-2 24x36 100SC

RECORD LEGAL DESCRIPTION - KISER - 20250513GA/RC

THE LAND IS DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

LOCATED IN CROWDERS MOUNTAIN TOWNSHIP (WITH A PORTION OF SAID PROPERTY LOCATED IN THE TOWN OF BESSEMER CITY), IN GASTON COUNTY

AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT A NEW IRON LOCATED IN THE EDGE OF THE RIGHT—OF—-WAY FOR N.C. HIGHWAY NO. 274, SAID NEW IRON BEING LOCATED NORTH 87°

35" 07" WEST 12.75 FEET FROM AN EXISTING IRON LOCATED IN THE RIGHT—OF—WAY FOR NC HIGHWAY NO. 274, AND ALSO BEING LOCATED WITH

THE ARC OF A CIRCULAR CURVE TO THE RIGHT, WITH A RADIUS OF 1,078.86 FEET, A DISTANCE OF 483.19 FEET (CHORD SOUTH 20° 42" 13"EAST

479.16 FEET) AND THENCE, SOUTH 08" 16" 35"EAST 747.03 FEET FROM THE SOUTHEASTERN MOST CORNER OF LOT CONVEYED TO WOOTEN BY

DEED RECORDED IN BOOK 1180 PAGE 129, AND RUNNING FROM SAID POINT OF BEGINNING, TWO LINES AS FOLLOWS:

1. NORTH 87° 35’ 07"WEST 587.26 FEET TO A NEW IRON PIN; RUNNING THENCE,

2. SOUTH 26° 37’ 58”WEST 63.19 FEET TO A POINT IN THE CENTERLINE OF THE BRANCH, ALONG LINE OF LAND CONVEYED TO TOOMEY BY DEED
RECORDED IN BOOK 1032 PAGE 40;

THENCE WITH TOOMEY PROPERTY, ALONG THE CENTERLINE OF A BRANCH, THIRTY—TWO COURSES AND DISTANCES:

NORTH 86° 05’ 06" WEST 62.36 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE,

NORTH 84° 12’ 41" WEST 46.85 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE,

NORTH 62° 04’ 16” WEST 14.85 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE,

SOUTH 71" 57° 02" WEST 14.25 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE,

NORTH 52° 37’ 51" WEST 75.19 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE,

NORTH 82° 12’ 09” WEST 12.64 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE,

NORTH 26° 40’ 48" WEST 15.43 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE,

NORTH 78° 23’ 29" WEST 15.23 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE,

NORTH 47° 38" 40" WEST 22.76 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE,

10. NORTH 32° 30’ 48" WEST 33.96 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE,

11. NORTH 65° 59’ 36" WEST 19.71 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE,

12. NORTH 41° 26’ 50" WEST 26.98 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE,

13. NORTH 34" 35’ 59” WEST 30.05 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE,

14. NORTH 77° 41’ 29" WEST 22.22 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE,

15. NORTH 24° 26’ 45" WEST 20.42 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE,

16. NORTH 54° 57" 25" EAST 17.41 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE,

17. NORTH 21° 11’ 43" WEST 22.21 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE,

18. NORTH 56° 34’ 27" WEST 34.96 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE,

19. NORTH 65" 58" 10" EAST 10.99 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE,

20. NORTH 69° 29’ 14" WEST 33.89 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE,

21. NORTH 12° 21" 45" EAST 14.23 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE,

1) NORTH 58° 37’ 00" WEST 48.98 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE,

2) NORTH 15° 24’ 49” WEST 14.69 FEET TO A POINT;, THENCE,

3) NORTH 83" 20’ 56" WEST 18.23 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE,

4) NORTH 41° 39° 40" WEST 7.38 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE,

5) NORTH 38° 55’ 01" EAST 17.89 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE,

6) NORTH 46° 36° 30" WEST 8.29 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE,

7) SOUTH 71° 05" 57" WEST 12.18 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE,

8) NORTH 49° 50° 21" WEST 48.93 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE,

9) NORTH 07° 16’ 12" WEST 12.30 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE,

10) NORTH 30° 08" 29" WEST 52.99 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE,

11) SOUTH 62° 05" 41" WEST 19.48 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE WITH TOOMEY LAND ALONG THE BRANCH, NINE LINES AS FOLLOWS:

1) NORTH 33" 04’ 58" WEST 24.02 FEEL TO A POINT; THENCE,

2) NORTH 05° 10’ 33" WEST 26.98 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE,

3) NORTH 65° 54’ 57" WEST 51.34 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE,

4) NORTH 10° 23’ 18" WEST 12.41 FEET; THENCE,

5) NORTH 67° 34’ 42" WEST 18.05 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE,

6) SOUTH 72° 38" 33" WEST 18.97 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE,

7) SOUTH 46° 50° 27" WEST 19.86 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE,

8) NORTH 45° 26’ 07" WEST 34.03 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE,

9) NORTH 11° 20" 19" WEST 100.22 FEET TO A POINT;

CONTINUING ALONG THE BRANCH WITH KISER PROPERTY RECORDED IN DEED IN BOOK 938 PAGE 531, THE FOLLOWING THREE COURSES AND

DISTANCES:

1. NORTH 79° 22’ 09" WEST 37.74 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE,

2. SOUTH 74° 02" 55" WEST 18.01 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE,

3. NORTH 87° 17’ 59’ WEST 17.13 FEET TO A POINT IN THE SOUTHWESTERN CORNER OF DAMERON PROPERTY RECORDED IN DEED IN BOOK 1472
PAGE 545 AND DEED IN BOOK 1450 PAGE 506;

THENCE ALONG DAMERON PROPERTY, NORTH 50° 55’ 12" EAST 1002.76 FEET, PASSING AN EXISTING IRON PIN AT 27.13 FEET TO AN EXISTING IRON,

THE NORTHWESTERN CORNER OF GNEGY RECORDED IN DEED IN BOOK 646 PAGE 123 AND SOUTHWESTERN CORNER OF GNEGY RECORDED IN DEED

IN BOOK 490 PAGE 301; THENCE, SOUTH 50° 35' 42" EAST 236.19 FEET TO A NEW IRON PIN AT THE SOUTHEASTERN CORNER OF WOOTEN

PROPERTY RECORDED IN DEED IN BOOK 1180 PAGE 129; THENCE WITH WOOTEN PROPERTY, NORTH 50° 59’ 18" EAST 197.97 FEET TO A NEW IRON

PIN LOCATED IN THE EDGE OF THE RIGHT—OF—WAY FOR NC HIGHWAY NO. 274; RUNNING THE TWO LINES WITH THE SOUTHWESTERN EDGE OF THE

RIGHT-OF-=WAY FOR NC HIGHWAY NO. 274, TWO LINES AS FOLLOWS:

1. WITH ARC OF A CIRCLE TO THE RIGHT, WITH RADIUS OF 1,078.86 FEET, A DISTANCE OF 483.19 FEET (CHORD SOUTH 20° 42" 13" EAST 479.16
FEET) AND THENCE,

2. SOUTH 08" 16" 35" EAST 747.03 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING 25.235 ACRES, IN ACCORDANCE WITH A PLAT PREPARED BY
R & W ENGINEERING, INC. ENTITLED "BOUNDARY SURVEY OF WOLFE PROPERTY,”DATED JULY 1986.

©CONOO AN

TITLE COMMITMENT INFORMATION - KISER - 20250513GA/RC

RECORD LEGAL DESCRIPTION - MILLWOOQOD - 20251051GA

THE LAND IS DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

LOCATED IN CROWDERS MOUNTAIN TOWNSHIP, IN GASTON COUNTY AND BEING A PORTION OF TRACT NO. 2 OF UNRECORDED PLAT OF THE LANDS
OF W. C. KISER ESTATE AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:
BEGINNING AT AN IRON STAKE SITUATED IN THE CENTERLINE OF SECONDARY ROAD NO. 1404, ALSO KNOWN AS SHERWOOD DRIVE, SAID POINT OF
BEGINNING ALSO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THE PROPERTY OWNED NOW OR FORMERLY BY MAFORD C. LAWRENCE ET UXOR, (SEE DEED IN BOOK

1032 PAGE 42);

THENCE ALONG THE EASTERLY AND NORTHERLY LINES OF PROPERTY THAT WAYNE K. KISER ET UXOR CONVEYED TO MAFORD C. LAWRENCE ET
UXOR BY DEED MAY 6, 1970 IN BOOK 1032 PAGE 42, THE FOLLOWING TWO COURSES AND DISTANCES:

1) NORTH 16° 41" EAST 330 FEET TO A STAKE; THENCE,

2) NORTH 69" 20° WEST 325.20 FEET TO A STAKE IN THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF TRACT NO. 5 OF THE LANDS OF W. C. KISER ESTATE AS
SHOWN UPON PLAT MADE BY ROBINSON & SAWYER INC., REGISTERED SURVEYORS, JULY 1966 AND REVISED OCTOBER 1966;

THENCE ALONG THE SOUTHEAST LINE OF SAID TRACT NO. 5 (PROPERTY, NOW OR FORMERLY OF SHARON KISER, SEE TRACT 1 IN DEED IN BOOK
938 PAGE 531), NORTH 37° 03' EAST 597.44 FEET TO A POINT IN THE CENTER OF A BRANCH;

THENCE ALONG THE CENTER OF SAID BRANCH, THE FOLLOWING COURSES AND DISTANCES:
1) SOUTH 20° 20’ EAST 50 FEET TO A POINT;

2) THENCE, SOUTH 85" 25" 15"
3) THENCE, SOUTH 40° 40’ 25"
4) THENCE, SOUTH 44" 20" 10"
5) THENCE, SOUTH 45° 49’ 19"
6) THENCE, SOUTH 38° 35’ 10"
7) THENCE, SOUTH 27° 16" 17"
8) THENCE, SOUTH 49° 47° 33"
9) THENCE, SOUTH 51° 59’ 17"

EAST 69.26 FEET TO A POINT;
EAST 96.03 FEET TO A POINT;
EAST 108.26 FEET TO A POINT;
EAST 111.65 FEET TO A POINT;
EAST 44.45 FEET TO A POINT;
EAST 57.22 FEET TO A POINT;
EAST 103.10 FEET TO A POINT;
EAST 156.57 FEET TO A POINT;

10) THENCE, SOUTH 79° 08" 11”7 EAST 55.64 FEET TO A POINT;
11) THENCE, SOUTH 85° 23’ 16" EAST 81.64 FEET TO A POINT;
12) THENCE, SOUTH 68 59’ 27" EAST 126.74 FEET TO A POINT, SAID POINT BEING ALSO A COMMON CORNER OF THE PROPERTY OF

LAWRENCE L. HANELL (SEE DEED IN BOOK 646 PAGE 392) AND THE PROPERTY OF JAMES J. ARRUZA (SEE DEED IN

BOOK 1314 PAGE 582);

THENCE WITH THE DIVISION LINE OF THE PROPERTY OF SADIE A. TOOMEY, JAMES J. ARRUZA AND THELMA MORGAN (SEE DEED IN BOOK 834 PAGE
25), SOUTH 30° 44’ 24" WEST 319.76 FEET TO AN EXISTING IRON PIPE, SAID IRON BEING ALSO A COMMON CORNER IN THE PROPERTY OF THELMA
MORGAN (SEE DEED IN BOOK 1228 PAGE 24), AND THE PROPERTY OF TOOMEY;

THENCE WITH THE DIVISION LINE OF TOOMEY AND CAPPS, NORTH 76° 18" 35" WEST 199.98 FEET TO AN EXISTING IRON PIPE IN THE DIVISION LINE

OF CAPPS AND TOOMEY;

THENCE WITH THE DIVISION LINE OF CAPPS AND TOOMEY;

THENCE WITH THE DIVISION LINE OF CAPPS AND TOOMEY, SOUTH 37° 12" 31" WEST 300.51 FEET TO A POINT IN THE CENTERLINE OF SECONDARY

ROAD NO. 1404,

THENCE WITH THE CENTERLINE OF SECONDARY ROAD NO. 1404, THE FOLLOWING COURSES AND DISTANCES:

1) NORTH 67° 39’ WEST 199.80

FEET TO AN IRON;

2) THENCE, NORTH 70" 48 WEST 100.36 FEET TO AN IRON;

3) THENCE, NORTH 74° 07" 02"

WEST 152.29 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING,

CONTAINING 13.44 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, ALL AS SHOWN ON UNRECORDED SURVEY MADE BY JOHN W. LINEBERGER, NCRLS, DATED JANUARY 24,

1989.

TITLE COMMITMENT INFORMATION - MILLWOOQOD - 20251051GA

[B. RIGHT, PRIVILEGE AND EASEMENT FOR TRANSMITTING POWER BY ELECTRICITY AND FOR
TELEPHONE PURPOSES, BLANKET IN NATURE, AMBIGUOUS, AFFECTS PARCEL, NOT PLOTTABLE]

TITLE
COMMITMENT RECORDING
REFERENCE REFERENCE DESCRIPTION STATUS ON PLAT
NUMBER
EASEMENT(S) TO DUKE POWER COMPANY
[A. RIGHT, PRIVILEGE AND EASEMENT FOR TRANSMITTING POWER BY ELECTRICITY AND FOR
@ BBT< 557(’)18 PF?G 5655’ TELEPHONE PURPOSES, BLANKET IN NATURE, AMBIGUOUS, AFFECTS PARCEL, NOT PLOTTABLE] NOT PLOTTABLE

@ BK 516 PG 176

RIGHT-OF—WAY TO STATE HIGHWAY COMMISSION (PROJECT 9-303)
[60° ROW, 30" LEFT & 30" RIGHT OF SURVEY CENTER LINE, AMBIGUOUS COUNTY ROAD,
ADDITIONAL ROW TRIANGLE, NOT PLOTTABLE]

NOT PLOTTABLE

@ BK 1122 PG 839

RIGHT-OF—WAY TO STATE HIGHWAY COMMISSION FOR SECONDARY ROAD 1404
[S.R. 1404 IS SHERWOOD DRIVE, 60’ ROW, 30’ ON EACH SIDE OF CENTERLINE, ADDITIONAL
WIDTH AS NECESSARY FOR SLOPES AND DRAINAGE OF ROAD, AFFECTS SUBJECT PARCEL]

PLOTTED AND SHOWN
HEREON

TITLE

COMMITMENT| RECORDING

REFERENCE REFERENCE DESCRIPTION
NUMBER

@ BK 1182 PG 224

RIGHT-OF—WAY TO BOARD OF TRANSPORTATION FOR SECONDARY ROAD 1404
[S.R. 1404 IS SHERWOOD DRIVE, 60’ ROW, 30’ ON EACH SIDE OF CENTERLINE, ADDITIONAL
WIDTH AS NECESSARY FOR SLOPES AND DRAINAGE OF ROAD, AFFECTS SUBJECT PARCEL]

PLOTTED AND SHOWN
HEREON

STATUS ON PLAT

RIGHT—OF-WAY TO STATE HIGHWAY & PUBLIC WORKS COMMISSION

@ BK 508 PG 413 [240" ROW, 160’ LEFT & 80’ RIGHT OF SURVEY CENTER LINE, REFERENCES S.H. PROJECT 63286,
STA 232+40 TO STA 254+20, AMBIGUOUS MAJOR HIGHWAY, UNABLE TO DETERMINE LOCATION,

MAY NOT AFFECT SUBJECT PROPERY, NOT PLOTTABLE]

NOT PLOTTABLE

BOUNDARY LINE AGREEMENT
@ BK 1816 PG 123 |[AFFECTS SUBJECT PROPERTY, HOWEVER MAY NO LONGER BE PERTINENT AS IT APPEARS
PRIOR PARCELS HAVE BEEN COMBINED INTO CURRENT PROPERTY]

NOT PLOTTABLE

REFERENCE: INVESTORS TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY, COMMITMENT NUMBER: 202510513GA/RC,
COMMITMENT DATE: MARCH 17, 2025

REFERENCE: INVESTORS TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY, COMMITMENT NUMBER: 20251051GA,
COMMITMENT DATE: MARCH 14, 2025

AS-SURVEYED LEGAL DESCRIPTION - KISER PROPERTY-NEW PARCEL

LOCATED IN BESSEMER CITY, CROWDERS MOUNTAIN TOWNSHIP, IN GASTON COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA AND BEING A PORTION OF LANDS NOW OR
FORMERLY OF MELVIN L. KISER JR. & SUZANNE P. KISER, PARCEL #151644 & #151645, AS RECORDED IN TRACT ONE OF THE DEED BOOK 5371
PAGE 1347 OF THE GASTON COUNTY REGISTER OF DEEDS AND MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT AN IRON REBAR FOUND ALONG THE SOUTHWESTERLY RIGHT—OF—WAY LINE OF TRYON COURTHOUSE ROAD, A 60’ PUBLIC
RIGHT—-OF—WAY, AND THE SOUTHEASTERLY LINE OF LANDS NOW OR FORMERLY REGINA A. SILVERS, AS RECORDED IN DEED BOOK 2035 PAGE 988
OF THE GASTON COUNTY REGISTER OF DEEDS, SAID REBAR BEING THE POINT OF BEGINNING;

THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG THE SOUTHWESTERLY RIGHT—OF—WAY LINE OF SAID TRYON COURTHOUSE ROAD, A CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A
DELTA = 25° 39’ 40", RADIUS = 1078.86 FEET, ARC LENGTH = 483.19 FEET, AND A CHORD & BEARING OF SOUTH 20" 06’ 35" EAST, 479.16
FEET TO AN IRON REBAR FOUND AT THE WESTERLY RIGHT—OF—WAY LINE OF NORTH 14TH STREET, A 60" PUBLIC RIGHT—OF—WAY;

THENCE CONTINUING SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID NORTH 14TH STREET RIGHT—OF—WAY LINE, SOUTH 07° 40’ 57" EAST A DISTANCE OF 450.08
FEET TO A REBAR SET;

THENCE RUNNING ALONG LANDS OF SAID MELVIN L. KISER, JR. & SUZANNE P. KISER THE FOLLOWING THREE (3) COURSES AND DISTANCES:
1. SOUTH 82° 56’ 23" WEST A DISTANCE OF 304.26 FEET TO A REBAR SET;
2. SOUTH 56° 30’ 51" WEST A DISTANCE OF 130.74 FEET TO A REBAR SET;
3. SOUTH 06° 05" 29” EAST A DISTANCE OF 163.18 FEET TO A REBAR SET;

THENCE WESTERLY ALONG THE NORTHERLY LINE OF LANDS NOW OR FORMERLY MELVIN L. KISER, JR. & SUZANNE P. KISER, AS RECORDED IN DEED
BOOK 3158 PAGE 168 OF THE GASTON COUNTY REGISTER OF DEEDS THE FOLLOWING TWO (2) COURSES AND DISTANCES:

1. NORTH 86° 52’ 58" WEST A DISTANCE OF 153.30 FEET TO AN IRON REBAR FOUND;

2. SOUTH 27° 05’ 54" WEST A DISTANCE OF 62.82 FEET TO AN IRON REBAR FOUND;

THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG THE NORTHERLY LINE OF LANDS NOW OR FORMERLY TOMMY MILLWOOD & ANN S. MILLWOOD, PARCEL #151640, AS
RECORDED IN DEED BOOK 1960 PAGE 603, OF THE GASTON COUNTY REGISTER OF DEEDS MEANDERING ALONG THE CENTERLINE OF THE CREEK THE
FOLLOWING ELEVEN (11) COURSES AND DISTANCES:

NORTH 84° 51° 38" WEST A DISTANCE OF 81.64 FEET TO A POINT;

NORTH 78° 36’ 30" WEST A DISTANCE OF 55.64 FEET TO A POINT;

NORTH 51° 27’ 41” WEST A DISTANCE OF 156.57 FEET TO A POINT;

NORTH 49° 16’ 08" WEST A DISTANCE OF 103.10 FEET TO A POINT;

NORTH 26° 44’ 41" WEST A DISTANCE OF 57.22 FEET TO A POINT;

NORTH 38° 03’ 28" WEST A DISTANCE OF 44.45 FEET TO A POINT;

NORTH 45° 17’ 44" WEST A DISTANCE OF 111.65 FEET TO A POINT;

NORTH 43° 48" 28" WEST A DISTANCE OF 108.26 FEET TO A POINT;

. NORTH 40" 08" 54" WEST A DISTANCE OF 96.03 FEET TO A POINT;

10. NORTH 84" 53’ 37" WEST A DISTANCE OF 69.26 FEET TO A POINT;

11. NORTH 19° 48’ 12" WEST A DISTANCE OF 50.00 FEET TO A POINT;

WoONOO RGNS

THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG THE NORTHERLY LINE OF LANDS NOW OR FORMERLY MASTERS FAMILY HOLDINGS, LLC, AS RECORDED IN DEED
BOOK 5451 PAGE 2324, OF THE GASTON COUNTY REGISTER OF DEEDS MEANDERING ALONG THE CENTERLINE OF THE CREEK THE FOLLOWING FOUR
(4) COURSES AND DISTANCES:

1. NORTH 06° 29° 37" WEST A DISTANCE OF 64.48 FEET TO A POINT;

2. NORTH 78° 46’ 31" WEST A DISTANCE OF 37.74 FEET TO A POINT;

3. SOUTH 74° 38" 33" WEST A DISTANCE OF 18.01 FEET TO A POINT;

4. NORTH 86" 42’ 21" WEST A DISTANCE OF 17.13 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG THE SOUTHEASTERLY LINE OF LANDS NOW OR FORMERLY ERNEST L. DAMERON, JR. & VICKIE DAMERON, AS
RECORDED IN DEED BOOK 5360 PAGE 1491, OF THE GASTON COUNTY REGISTER OF DEEDS, NORTH 51° 30’ 50" EAST A DISTANCE OF 1002.76 FEET
TO AN IRON PIPE FOUND, PASSING AN IRON REBAR FOUND AT 26.79 FEET;

THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG THE SOUTHWESTERLY LINES OF LANDS NOW OR FORMERLY ROGER DALE GANTT, ET AL, AS RECORDED IN DEED
BOOK 4877 PAGE 866, AND LANDS OF SAID REGINA A. SILVERS, AS RECORDED IN DEED BOOK 2035 PAGE 988, OF THE GASTON COUNTY REGISTER
OF DEEDS, SOUTH 50° 00’ 04" EAST A DISTANCE OF 236.32 FEET TO AN IRON REBAR FOUND;

THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG THE SOUTHEASTERLY LINE OF LANDS OF SAID REGINA A. SILVERS, NORTH 51° 34’ 56" EAST A DISTANCE OF
197.97 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

THE ABOVE—DESCRIBED PARCEL CONTAINS A TOTAL OF (994,966 SQUARE FEET) 22.842 ACRES MORE OR LESS. ALL REBAR SET ARE #4 REBAR
WITH CAP.

AS-SURVEYED LEGAL DESCRIPTION - MILLWOOD PROPERTY

LOCATED IN CROWDERS MOUNTAIN TOWNSHIP, IN GASTON COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA AND BEING ALL OF THE LANDS NOW OR FORMERLY OF TOMMY
MILLWOOD & ANN S. MILLWOOD, PARCEL #151640, AS RECORDED IN DEED BOOK 1960 PAGE 603 OF THE GASTON COUNTY REGISTER OF DEEDS AND
MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT A MAGNAIL FOUND IN WITHIN THE ROADWAY OF SHERWOOD DRIVE, A 60" WIDE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF—WAY AND THE EASTERLY LINE OF
LANDS NOW OR FORMERLY SANDRA L. LIGHTNER, AS RECORDED IN DEED BOOK 2055 PAGE 156 OF THE GASTON COUNTY REGISTER OF DEEDS;

THENCE CONTINUING ALONG THE ROADWAY OF SAID SHERWOOD DRIVE THE NEXT FOLLOWING (3) COURSES AND DISTANCES:
1. NORTH 67° 07" 12" WEST A DISTANCE OF 199.80 FEET TO A MAGNAIL FOUND;

2. NORTH 70" 16’ 12" WEST A DISTANCE OF 100.36 FEET TO A POINT;

3. NORTH 73" 35’ 26" WEST A DISTANCE OF 152.49 FEET TO A MAGNAIL FOUND;

THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG THE EASTERLY LINE OF LANDS NOW OR FORMERLY SHEILA ANN DAVIS, AS RECORDED IN DEED BOOK 4871 PAGE
378 OF THE GASTON COUNTY REGISTER OF DEEDS, NORTH 17° 16" 19" EAST A DISTANCE OF 329.82 FEET TO AN IRON REBAR FOUND, PASSING AN
IRON REBAR FOUND AT 32.01 FEET AT THE NORTHERLY RIGHT—OF—WAY LINE OF SAID SHERWOOD DRIVE;

THENCE CONTINUING NORTHWESTERLY ALONG THE NORTHERLY LINE OF SAID SHEILA ANN DAVIS, NORTH 68° 31" 06” WEST A DISTANCE OF 148.40
FEET TO AN IRON REBAR FOUND;

THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG THE NORTHERLY LINE OF LANDS NOW OR FORMERLY C. ALLEN LEE & ELIZABETH L. LEE, AS RECORDED IN DEED
BOOK 4141 PAGE 2223 OF THE GASTON COUNTY REGISTER OF DEEDS, NORTH 68° 29" 09” WEST A DISTANCE OF 34.34 FEET TO AN IRON REBAR
FOUND;

THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG THE NORTHERLY LINE OF LANDS NOW OR FORMERLY ELIZABETH LAWRENCE LEE, AS RECORDED IN DEED BOOK 2168
PAGE 848 OF THE GASTON COUNTY REGISTER OF DEEDS, NORTH 69° 02’ 14" WEST A DISTANCE OF 77.25 FEET TO AN IRON REBAR FOUND;

THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG THE NORTHERLY LINE OF LANDS NOW OR FORMERLY AND, C. ALLEN LEE & ELIZABETH L. LEE, AS RECORDED IN
DEED BOOK 4142 PAGE 2004 OF THE GASTON COUNTY REGISTER OF DEEDS, NORTH 69° 12’ 068" WEST A DISTANCE OF 65.38 FEET TO AN IRON
REBAR FOUND;

THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG THE SOUTHEASTERLY LINE OF LANDS NOW OR FORMERLY MASTERS FAMILY HOLDINGS, LLC, AS RECORDED IN DEED
BOOK 5451 PAGE 2324 OF THE GASTON COUNTY REGISTER OF DEEDS, NORTH 37° 34’ 48" EAST A DISTANCE OF 597.44 FEET TO A POINT AT THE
CENTERLINE OF A CREEK, PASSING AN IRON PIPE FOUND ON LINE AT 572.30;

THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG THE SOUTHERLY LINES OF LANDS NOW OR FORMERLY MELVIN L. KISER, JR. & SUZANNE P. KISER, PARCEL
#151644, AS RECORDED IN TRACT ONE OF THE DEED BOOK 5371 PAGE 1347 OF THE GASTON COUNTY REGISTER OF DEEDS MEANDERING ALONG
THE CENTERLINE OF THE CREEK THE FOLLOWING ELEVEN (11) COURSES AND DISTANCES:

SOUTH 19" 48" 12”7 EAST A DISTANCE OF 50.00 FEET TO A POINT;

SOUTH 84" 53’ 37" EAST A DISTANCE OF 69.26 FEET TO A POINT;

SOUTH 40° 08" 54" EAST A DISTANCE OF 96.03 FEET TO A POINT;

SOUTH 43" 48’ 28" EAST A DISTANCE OF 108.26 FEET TO A POINT;

SOUTH 45° 17° 44" EAST A DISTANCE OF 111.65 FEET TO A POINT;

SOUTH 38° 03’ 28" EAST A DISTANCE OF 44.45 FEET TO A POINT;

SOUTH 26° 44’ 41" EAST A DISTANCE OF 57.22 FEET TO A POINT;

SOUTH 49° 16’ 08" EAST A DISTANCE OF 103.10 FEET TO A POINT;

. SOUTH 51° 27" 41" EAST A DISTANCE OF 156.57 FEET TO A POINT;

10. SOUTH 78° 36’ 30" EAST A DISTANCE OF 55.64 FEET TO A POINT;

11. SOUTH 84° 51" 38" EAST A DISTANCE OF 81.64 FEET TO AN IRON REBAR FOUND;

©CONOO NS

THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF LANDS NOW OR FORMERLY MELVIN L. KISER, JR. & SUZANNE P. KISER, AS RECORDED IN
DEED BOOK 3158 PAGE 168 OF THE GASTON COUNTY REGISTER OF DEEDS, SOUTH 68 27’ 57" EAST A DISTANCE OF 126.74 FEET TO AN IRON
PIPE FOUND;

THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG THE NORTHWESTERLY LINES OF LANDS NOW OR FORMERLY JAMES J. ARRUZA & JOAN S. ARRUZA, AS RECODED IN
DEED BOOK 1314 PAGE 582, AND, GEORGIA RANEE WILES & CYNTHIA DIANE NICHOLSON, AS RECORDED IN DEED BOOK 519 PAGE 2316 OF THE
GASTON COUNTY REGISTER OF DEEDS, SOUTH 31° 16’ 28" WEST A DISTANCE OF 319.76 FEET TO AN IRON REBAR, PASSING AN IRON PIPE FOUND
ON LINE AT 171.98’;

THENCE WESTERLY AND SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG THE NORTHERLY AND WESTERLY LINES OF LANDS NOW OR FORMERLY SANDRA L. LIGHTNER, AS
RECORDED IN DEED BOOK 2055 PAGE 156 OF THE GASTON COUNTY REGISTER OF DEEDS THE FOLLOWING TWO (2) COURSES AND DISTANCES:
1. NORTH 75° 47’ 10" WEST A DISTANCE OF 199.98 FEET TO AN IRON REBAR;

2. SOUTH 37° 44’ 40" WEST A DISTANCE OF 300.51 FEET TO THE PLACE OF BEGINNING, PASSING AN IRON PIPE FOUND AT 274.33 FEET AND ON
THE NORTHERLY RIGHT—OF—WAY LINE OF SAID SHERWOOD DRIVE.

THE ABOVE—DESCRIBED PARCEL CONTAINS A TOTAL OF (585,435 SQUARE FEET) 13.440 ACRES MORE OR LESS.

; XY2500412.01

Xref (s):

o
© £
©o OC
SEQ>5
—
*Gogs
2289
Sos e
C C C @©
< WL g

Companies

3L

3420 Toringdon Way
Suite 210
Charlotte, NC 28277
(704) 565-7070
NC ENGINEERING FIRM
LIC. #C-4082

LANDS OF
MELVIN LUTHER KISER, JR. AND WIFE, SUZANNE P. KISER,
& TOMMY AND ANN S. MILLWOOD
1103 NORTH 14TH STREET AND SHERWOOD DRIVE
BESSEMER CITY AND CROWDERS MOUNTAIN TOWNSHIP
GASTON COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

9]

3

o
(%)
Z
o
2 o
> ©
u A
14

o

2
Surveyed JC/DB
Drawn JH/WY
Reviewed DB/JM
Scale 1"=100"'
Project No. 2500412
Date 03/28/2025
CAD File: AL250041201
Title
ALTA/NSPS
LAND TITLE
SURVEY

Sheet No. 2 of 2

AL-1

© 2025 BL COMPANIES, INC. THESE DRAWINGS SHALL NOT BE UTILIZED BY ANY PERSON, FIRM OR CORPORATION WITHOUT THE SPECIFIC WRITTEN PERMISSION OF BL COMPANIES.




